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VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS 

Blanca S. Bayo 
Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services :::;! 

c·Florida Public Service Commission 	 en 
. ' '- .I 

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: 	 Application of CM Tel (USA) LLC for Authority to Provide Alternative 
Local Exchange ("ALEC") Service Within the State of Florida 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Transmitted herewith, on behalf of CM Tel (USA) LLC, are an original and 
six (6) copies of its application for authority to provide Alternative Local Exchange 
("ALEC") services within the State of Florida. Also enclosed is a $250 check in 
payment of the filing fee. 

Should you have any questions concernmg this matter, please contact the 
undersigned. 

Respectfully submitted, 

HOLLAND & KNIGHT LLP 

ECORDS ~~~ 
Eric Fishman 
Counsel for CM Tel (USA) LLC 
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CM TEL (USA) LLC 
700 WlLSHlRE BLVD., 7TH FLOOR 

LOS ANGELES, CA 90017 

1652 
BANK OF AMERICA 

600 WlLSHlRE BOULEVARD 
WILSHIRE-GRAND BRANCH 2146 (213) 312-9000 

LOS ANGELES, CA 90017 6/5/2003 
16-66-1220 

FDL;&!' Florida Public Service Commission $ **250.00 
c 

Florida Public Service Commission 

Filing fee for retail business 

ZM TEL (USA) LLC 
Florida Public Service Commission 

Filing fee for retail business 
6/5/2003 1652 

250.00 

BOA Checking Filing fee for retail business 

i 

250.00 



** FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION ** 

DIVISION OF COMPETITIVE MARKETS AND ENFORCEMENT 
CERTl FlCATlON 

APPLICATION FORM 
for 

ALTERNATIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE 
WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

AUTHORITYTO PROVIDE 

~- ~~ 

Instructions 

d This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval of 
the assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In the case of an assignment 
or transfer, the information provided shall be for the assignee or transferee (See 
Page 12). 

appendices. If an item is not applicable, please explain why. 
d Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application and 

& Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space. 

d Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along with a 
non-refundable application fee of $250.00 to: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Setvices 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 41 3-6770. 

0 If you have questions about completing the form, contact: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Competitive Markets and Enforcement 
Certification 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 41 3-6600 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

APPLICATION 

This is an application for (check one): 

Original certificate (new company). 

Approval of transfer of existing certificate: Example, a non-certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the original 
certificate of authority. 

Approval of assignment of existing certificate: Example, a certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the 
certificate of authority of that company. 

Approval of transfer of control: Example, a company purchases 51 % of 
a certificated company. The Commission must approve the new 
controlling entity. 

' 

Name of company: 

CM Tel (USA) LLC 

Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

CM Tel (USA) LLC 

Official mailing address (including street name & number, post office box, 
city, state, zip code): 

700 Wilshire Boulevard, 7fh Floor, Los Angeles, California 90017 
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5. Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, 
state, zip code): 

c/o Corporation Service Companv, 1201 Havs St. 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

6. Structure of organization: 

( ) Individual ( ) Corporation 
( ) Foreign Corporation ( ) Foreign Partnership 
( ) General Partnership ( ) Limited Partnership 
(X) Other: Limited Liability Company 

7. If individual, provide: 

Name: N/A 

Title: 

Address: 

C i t ylS t at e/Z i p : 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 

8. If incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 
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9. If foreiqn corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

M03000001597 (see Exhibit D) 

10. If usinq fictitious name-d/b/a, provide proof of compliance with fictitious 
name statute (Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State fictitious name registration number: 

11. 

12. 

If a limited liabilitv partnership, provide proof of registration to operate in 
Florida: 

(a) 

i 

Florida Secretary of State registration number: 

N/A 

If a partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy 
of the partnership agreement. 

Name: N/A 

Title: 

C i t y/S t at e/Zi p : 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 

13. If a foreiqn limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the 
foreign limited partnership statute (Chapter 620.1 69, FS), if applicable. 

(a) The Florida registration number: N/A 

14. Provide F.E.I. Number(if applicable): 94-3337847 
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15. Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest 
stockholders have previously been: 

(a) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or 
of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending 
proceedings. Provide explanation. 

NONE 

(b) an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated 
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no 
longer associated with company, give reason whv not. 

NONE 

16. Who will serve as liaison to the Commission with regard to the following? 

(a) The application: 

Name: Eric Fishman, Esq. 
Title: Partner 
Address: Holland & Knight LLP, 2099 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Suite 100 
City/State/Zip: Washington, DC 20006 
Telephone No.: (202) 828-1849 Fax No.: (202) 955-5564 
Internet E-Mail Address: efishman8 hklaw.com 
Internet Website Address: www.hklaw.com 

(b) Official point of contact for the onqoinq operations of the company: 

Name: Roberto Leon 
Title: Technical Manager 
Address: 700 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 700 
City/State/Zip: Los Angeles, CA 9001 7 
Telephone No.: 1-800-574-7521 
Internet E-Mail Address: rob.leon8china-motion.com 
Internet Website Address: www.china-motion.com 

Fax No.: 21 3-488-1 491 
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(c) 

Name: Same as (b) above 

Co m p I ai n t s/l n a u i r i es from cu s t o me rs : 

Title: 

Address: 

C i t y/S t at elZ i p : 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 

17. List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) has operated as an alternative local exchange company. 

NONE 

(b) has applications pending to be certificated as an alternative local 
exchange company. 

California, Nevada, Washington, Texas, Michigan, Maryland, New 
York, Illinois, Arizona 

(c) is certificated to operate as an alternative local exchange company. 

NONE 

(d) has been denied authority to operate as an alternative local exchange 
company and the circumstances involved. 

NONE 

(e) has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications 
statutes and the circumstances involved. 

NONE 

(f) has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, 
local exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the 
circumstances involved. 

NONE 
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18. Submit the following: 

A. Managerial capability: give resumes of employees/officers of the company 
that would indicate sufficient managerial experiences of each. 

SEE EXHIBIT A 

B. Technical capability: give resumes of employees/officers of the company 
that would indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate what 
company has been contracted to conduct technical maintenance. 

SEE EXHIBIT B 

C. Financial capability. 

The application should contain the applicant's audited financial 
statements for the most recent 3 years. If the applicant does not have 
audited financial statements, it shall so be stated. 

The unaudited financial statements should be signed by the applicant's 
chief executive officer and chief financial officer affirming that the financial 
statements are true and correct and should include: 

1. the balance sheet: 

2. income statement: and 

3. statement of retained earnings. 

SEE EXHIBIT C 

NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, a 
projected profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and 
descriptions of business relationships with financial institutions. 

Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should be 
provided: 

1. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
provide the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be 
served. 

2. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
maintain the requested service. 

3. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
meet its lease or ownership obligations. 
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THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT 

1. REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone companies 
must pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of , I 5  of one percent of 
gross operating revenue derived from intrastate business. Regardless of the 
gross operating revenue of a company, a minimum annual assessment fee of 
$50 is required. 

2. APPLICATION FEE: I understand that a non-refundable application fee of 
$250.00 must be submitted with the application. 

UTI L ITY 0 FFI C I AL: 

Eric Fishman 
Print Name Signature 

i 

[i, < ,  ‘7 7 
Assistant Secretarv I bJ 

Title I 

1-800-574-7521 202-955-5564 
Telephone No. Fax No. 

Address: c/o Holland & Knight LLP 

2099 Pennsvlvania Ave., NW, Suite 100 

Washinqton, DC 20006 



THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

AFFIDAVIT 

By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of 
the information contained in this application and attached documents and 
that the applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and 
financial capability to provide alternative local exchange company service 
in the State of Florida. I have read the foregoing and declare that, to the 
best of my knowledge and belief, the information is true and correct. I 
attest that I have the authority to sign on behalf of my company and agree 
to comply, now and in the future, with all applicable Commission rules and 
orders. 

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statute?, 
"Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to 
mislead a public servant in the performance of his official duty shall be 
guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in 
s. 775.082 and s. 775.083." 

Eric Fishman 

UT I Ll TY 0 F FI C I AL: 

Print Name Signature ' 
(-I\ A* /&7 ?Jb I/\ 

. i\ 
Assistant Secretary L,A< ,u,&J& 
Title D& I 

202-828-1 889 202-955-5564 
Telephone No. Fax No. 

Address: c/o Holland & Knight LLP 

2099 Pennsvlvania Ave., NW, Suite 100 

Washington, DC 20006 



INTRASTATE NETWORK (if available) 

NOT AVAILABLE 

Chapter 25-24.825 (5), Florida Administrative Code, requires the company to make 
avai la b I e 

1. 

1) 

. -  

to staff the alternative local exchange service areas only upon request. 

POP: Addresses where located, and indicate if owned or leased. 

2) 

SWITCHES: Address where located, by type of switch, and indicate if 
owned or leased. 

TRANSMISSION FACILITIES: POP-to-POP facilities by type of facilities 
(microwave, fiber, copper, satellite, etc.) and indicate if owned or leased. 

POP-to-POP OWNERSHIP 
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EXHIBIT A 

Managerial Capability 

(see attached) 



CM TEL (USA) LLC 

FLORIDA ALEC APPLICATION 

EXHIBIT A 

RESUMES OF MANAGEMENT 

HAU TUNG YING 
Manager and Chairman of the Board 

Mr. Hau is a Manager and the Chairman of the Board of CM Tel (USA) LLC. Mr. 
Hau is also Chairman of the Board and Co-CEO of China Motion International 
Telecom Limited, a publicly traded company of which CM Tel (USA) LLC is a 
wholly-owned indirect subsidiary. As Chairman of each company, Mr. Hau is 
mainly responsible for strategic planning, corporate policies, and general oversight 
of operations. Mr. Hau has more than twenty-five years of work experience in the 
telecom industry, including over ten years in the Guangzhou Telecommunications 
Bureau and, from 1985 to  1989, as the Director and General Manager of Shenda 
Telephone Company Limited, a joint venture between Cable & Wireless plc and the 
Shenzhen Municipal Government. Mr. Hau holds a Bachelor of Science degree in 
Physics from Zhong Shan University. 

‘ 

HU TIEJUN 
Manager, President & CEO 

Mr. Hu is a Manager and the President and Chief Executive Officer of CM Tel 
(USA) LLC. In that position, Mr. Hu is mainly responsible for oversight of 
technical development and, together with Mr. Hau, for strategic planning, corporate 
polices, and general oversight of operations. Mr. Hu has more than twenty years of 
experience in computer systems and data communication networking. Mr. Hu holds 
a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics from Zhong Shan University. 

LI BIN 
Chief Operating Officer 

Mr. Li is the Chief Operation Officer of ChinaMotion NetCom Ltd. which is a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Motion Telecom International Ltd (CMTI), a 
Hong Kong-based telecommunications company dually listed in Singapore (CMTE) 
and Hong Kong (989). He has over twelve years experience in telecommunication 
industry. Riding on established international backbone networks, ChinaMotion 
NetCom Ltd. is penetrating the international telecommunication markets through a 
point of presence (“POP) strategy. Business establishments have been set up in 
various strategic locations such as Hong Kong, Taipei, Manila, Los Angeles and 
Singapore. Mr. Li has held various senior management positions in CMTI since 



1998. Prior to joining CMTI, he worked in China Telecom Guangdong Branch and 
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (HKUST). 

Mr. Li graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology, China in 
1991. He obtained his M. Phil. Degree in 1996 from the department of Electrical 
and Electronic Engineering, HKUST and is expected to receive his Ph.D. from 
HKUST in the near future. He has been a Member of IEEE since 1996, and has 
published numerous telecommunications-related research papers for international 
conferences and journals. 

SEAN LUO 
General Manager 

Mr. Sean Luo is the General Manager of CM Tel (USA) LLC. In that position, he is 
primarily responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of CM Tel (USA) ' 
LLC. For nine years prior to that, Mr. Luo served as Deputy General Manager of 
the Data division of China Telecom's Guang Dong Branch, where his 
responsibilities included operation and management. Mr. Luo holds a Bachelor of 
Science degree in Electrical Engineering from China Southern Industrial University 
and a Master of Science degree in Management Policy from the State University of 
New York. 

CHRISTOPHER J. LAURO 
Sales and Marketing Manager 

Mr. Lauro is the Sales and Marketing Manager of CM Tel (USA) LLC. In that 
position, Mr. Lauro is responsible for planning, implementing and supervising sales 
and marketing for CM Tel (USA) LLC. For two years prior to joining CM Tel (USA) 
LLC, Mr. Lauro served as Director of Purchasing and Logistics and Director of 
Marketing for China Motion Telecom International Limited, where his 
responsibilities included management and oversight of marketing strategy, retail 
product purchases, information technology management systems, and distribution 
requirement planning. Mr. Lauro also served for three years as Business 
Development Manager for Allied Pickfords International, Inc., the world's largest 
transportation company specializing in the logistics and shipment of personal 
household goods, where he managed the company's sales and marketing efforts. 
Mr. Lauro also served as a department head in charge of sales for US China 
Industrial Exchange Corp., a NASDAQ listed company (CHDX) engaged in 
distribution of heavy industry and medical equipment to governmental agencies. 
For three years prior t o  that, Mr. Lauro worked as a Sales Representative of Access 
Medical Equipment Group, which specialized in the purchase and resale of used 
diagnostic medical equipment. Mr. Lauro holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in 
Philosophy from State University of New York at Binghamton, and a Certificate in 
Chinese Language Studies from Fudan University. 
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JANEWU 
Project Director 

Ms. Jane Wu is the Project Director of CM Tel (USA) LLC. In that position, Ms. Wu 
is responsible for planning and implementing business development initiatives for 
CM Tel (USA) LLC. Prior to assuming this position, Ms. Wu spent six years in 
engineering and development management positions with Apple Computer (Asia). 
For the two years prior to  that, Ms. Wu also served as Project Manager with 
Multacom.com. Ms. Wu holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical 
Engineering from Beijing Industrial University, and a Masters of Business 
Administration with an emphasis on Information Technology Management from 
American HL University. 

WONG KAWAI 
Chief Financial Officer 

Ms. Wong is the Chief Financial Officer of CM Tel (USA) LLC and its parent, 
ChinaMotion NetCom Ltd., and is responsible for the overall supervision of the 
companies’ finance and accounting functions. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor of 
Business Administration degree and is an associate member of the Hong Kong 
Society of Accountants and fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants. She joined China Motion in 2000. Ms. Wong has over 8 years of 
finance and accounting experience in various public accounting, advisory services 
and listed companies. 

ZHOU MIN 
Secretary 

Ms. Zhou is the Secretary of CM Tel (USA) LLC. Prior to  her position as Secretary, 
Ms. Zhou served as the Department Manager of CM Tel’s Financial and Accounting 
division and as Senior Manager in the Finance Department of ChinaMotion 
NetCom Ltd. In those capacities, she compiled finance policies for the entire 
company and supervised the implementation of those policies. In addition, she 
oversaw the preparation of the company’s annual fiscal budget and supervised the 
implementation of the budget. Her other duties included analyzing financial 
reports and business performance, reporting to  the Board of Directors on various 
financial matters, and advising and coordinating the financial activities of 
ChinaMotion NetCom’s various subsidiaries. Ms. Zhou holds an MBA from Royal 
Roads University in Canada and a B.D. in economics from China Sichuan 
University. 
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ERIC FISHMAN 
Assistant Secretary 

Mr. Fishman is an Assistant Secretary for CM Tel (USA) LLC and also serves as 
outside legal counsel for the company. A partner at Holland & Knight LLP in 
Washington, Mr. Fishman practices telecommunications and general business law. 
His concentrations within the field of telecommunications are in wireless 
telecommunications, local exchange telephony, domestic and international long 
distance service, Internet telephony and high technology. 

Mr. Fishman's clients are engaged internationally and domestically in every major 
sector of the telecommunications industry. They include local telephone companies, 
domestic and international carriers (U.S. and foreign based), providers of wireless 
services, Internet access and service providers, and equipment manufacturers. Mr. 
Fishman also represents many non-telecommunications service providers, including 
investment institutions and large commercial and residential real estate owners. 
Mr. Fishman provides legal advice and representation on their behalf on matters of 
corporation and general business law as well as state, federal, and international 
issues of regulatory law governing telecommunications and information services. 

Mr. Fishman began his legal career at  the Federal Communications Commission as 
an attorney advisor with the Office of General Counsel. During his tenure at the 
FCC, he advised the Commission on broadcast, cellular, and common carrier 
adjudicatory matters and represented the Commission before the U.S. Court of 
Appeals. 

Mr. Fishman is a member of the District of Columbia Bar, the New York and 
Virginia Bars, and the Federal Communications Bar Association. In addition to  his 
career as an attorney, Mr. Fishman is an instructor at the John Hopkins University 
School of Continuing Studies, where he teaches courses in Domestic and 
International Telecommunications Policy and Regulation. 

A frequent speaker at  industry meetings and conferences, Mr. Fishman has 
appeared on panels of the ASCENT and various other trade associations. Mr. 
Fishman has also authored numerous articles on telecommunications law matters 
for industry publications. 

Mr. Fishman graduated with a B.A. degree in American history from the University 
of Chicago and received his Juris Doctor from Columbia Law School. Mr. Fishman 
also holds a doctorate in American history from Columbia University. 
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ADAM RITTER 
Assistant Secretary 

Mr. Ritter is a senior associate at Holland & Knight LLP in Los Angeles, California 
and serves as an Assistant Secretary to CM Tel (USA) LLC. His main practice 
areas are international business and corporate law, mergers and acquisitions, 
corporate finance, high-tech and emerging growth company, and cross-border 
transaction practices. Mr. Ritter serves both domestic and foreign clients, utilizing 
his Spanish and Mandarin Chinese language capacities as appropriate. Mr. Ritter 
represents overseas private and publicly held companies in connection with their 
corporate and business activities in the United States. In addition, Mr. Ritter 
makes time to serve as pro-bono General Counsel for the Asian Professional 
Exchange, as a Board member and Co-Chair of the Pacific Rim Committee for the 
Southern California Chinese Lawyers Association, and as Chairman of the Business 
School Council of the Directors Roundtable. Mr. Ritter also recently served as vice 
President - Pacific Rim of the Asian Business League. 

Mr. Ritter earned a BA degree from the University of California, Berkeley in 1988; 
a Master's degree in Business Administration from the Anderson Graduate School 
of Management of the University of California at Los Angeles in 1994; and a J D  
degree from the University of California at  Los Angeles School of Law in 1994 
where he was active with the Pacific Basin Law JournaZ as a member and editor 
1990-1991, 1992-1994. 

5 



EXHIBIT B 

Technical Capability 

(see attached) 



CM TEL (USA) LLC 

FLORIDA ALEC APPLICATION 

EXHIBIT B 

TECHNICAL CAPABILITY 

ROBERTO M. LEON 
Senior Technical Manager - Engineering 

Mr. Roberto Leon is the Technical Manager of CM Tel (USA) LLC. In that position, 
Mr. Leon is responsible for the day-to-day technical operations of the company, 
including Network Operations, Provisioning and InfrastructureEhgineering. Prior 
to joining CM Tel (USA) LLC, Mr. Leon was the National Director of Network 
Planningmngineering for Eureka Broadband, a nationwide Building Local 
Exchange Carrier (BLEC). In this capacity, he designed and rolled out a 
nationwide network in six metropolitan cities. Mr. Leon brings to  CM Tel (USA) 
LLC over twelve years of systems and network engineering experience. Mr. Leon 
has held management and leadership positions with Fortune 500 companies such as 
Motorola, SPS and Western Digital, as well as Senior Network Engineering 
positions with Tier-1 Internet providers such as Epoch Internet. Mr. Leon holds a 
Bachelor of Science degree in Advanced Computer Engineering from the University 
of California at  Irvine. 

WAS1 #1184899 v l  



EXHIBIT C 

Financial Statements 

(see attached) 

In support of its financial qualifications, CM Tel (USA) LLC (“CM Tel”) has 
attached hereto a Letter of Guarantee from its parent company, China Motion Telecom 
International Limited (“China Motion”). Also attached is the audited 2002 annual report 
for China Motion and the unaudited interim report for China Motion for the six months 
ended September 30, 2002. The next attachment is China Motion’s audited Condensed 
Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement, Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, and 
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. 

CM Tel (USA) LLC does not have audited financial information. However, + 

attached are copies of the Applicant’s Balance Sheet as of March 2003 and March 
2002, and Applicant’s Profit and Loss Statement as of March 2003 and March 2002. 

The Applicant respectfully submits that the attached materials adequately 
demonstrate CM Tel’s financial qualifications to provide telecommunications services. 
To the extent that the format of the attached materials does not strictly comply with 
Commission rules, CM Tel hereby requests a limited waiver of the Commission’s rules. 
Should the Commission staff require the submission of further financial information, CM 
Tel is willing to submit such other financial information as is available. 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0, and 25-24.81 5 4 



LETTEROFGUARANTEE 

I ,  H a u  Tung Ying, am Chairman of China Motion Telecom International Limited 
("China Motion"), the parent company of CM Tel (USA) LLC ("CM Tell'). I hereby 
certify that China Motion shall fully and unconditionally guarantee the 
operations of CM Tel for a period of two (2) years from the date of this letter of 
guarantee. For this purpose, China Motion will provide CM Tel with the 
resources necessary to support CM Tel's financial requirements and any other 
business opportunities that may arise, and will provide CM Tel with any 
funding CM Tel needs to pay CM Tel's debts when they fall due and to 
otherwise finance CM Tel's operations. I further certify that I am authorized to 
execute this Letter of Guarantee on behalf of China Motion. 

Executed on the 30th day of May, 2003, at  15/F., Hang Seng Building, 77 Des 
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. 

Name: Hau Tung Ying 
Title: Chairman 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this the 30th day 
of May, 2003, by H a u  Tung Ying on behalf of China Motion Telecom 
International Limited. 

Km"X-3 CHI LAM smo 
Notary public, Hong Kong SAR 
15th Floor, Hang Seng Building, 

77 Des Voeux Road, caw, 
Hong Kong. 

N.B. The Notary Public is acting as 
F a t t e s t i n  witness to the si nature@) 

been sought and given, and the attesting 
'Diary Public accepts no responsibility 

appearing a ereon only. No a l vice has 

? contents of this document 
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isaianeial ts  

Turnover (HK$ million) 722.9 768.4 891.2 863.6 780.8 

Net (ioss)/profit (HK$ million) (131.0) 40.0 2.1 80.2 

Total assets (HK$ million) 

Net assets (HK$ million) 876.0 794.4 537.1 554.1 

7 2. 1.8 

Working capital ratio 2"2 1.9 1 .o 0.8 1.5 
I .  

to eq O"1 .18 
" 

Note (1) The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2002 has been prepared In accordance with Statements of Standard 
Accounting Practice issued by The Hong Kong Society of Accountants while [he financial information of the preceding financial 
years have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards ("IAS") There is no material impact to the 
Groups consolidated accounts as a result of the change in the adoption of accounting standards for the preparation of tile 
accounts Please refer to note l (a)  to the accounts for details 

(2) The financial information for the years ended 31 March 1998, 1999 an0 2000 have not been adjusted for the effect arising from 
the adoption of IAS 38 and IAS 10 (revised 1999) which became effective for the financial year ended 31 March 200 1 and onwards 
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The following chart shows the principal subsidiaries and associated companies of the Group and their principal activities : 

products 2nd equpmentl 

ChinaMotion 
NetCom 

(Asia) Limited 
(Provision of 

long distance call sewices1 

190% 
Shenzhen Motion 
Mobile Telecom 
services co., Ltd. 
Romwn ofGSMrelated 

se~ ices  to telecom 
operators in the PRCJ 

A 70% 
Guanphou Motion Shenzhen Motion 

Telecom Telecom 
Service Co., Ltd. Service Co., Ltd. 
fM2nlenance semces and 1LeasIng and 

provisiori a f  telecom ma rntenance for 
related SeNlcesJ wireless telecom 

equwentandnelvmrksl 

1-1 2506 

Shanghai Guangzhou 
CM Concept CM Concept 

Telecom Products R&jlChain&., La. 
Retail Chain Co., Ltd. 

(RetaJl chain lor 

Eastern China) 

(Retail chain for 
telecom products in 

telecom oroduLls in Sobihern China1 
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Executive Directors 

HAU Tung Ying (Chairman) 

SHUl Ming Hua 
CHAN Wai Lun 

Non-Executive Directors 

YANG Jun (ViceChairman) 

LI Yi Sheng 

Timothy Allen BRIDGEWATER 

YUNG Yung Cheng, Frank' 
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An Innovative High Value Added Telecom Services Provider 

I would like to present the result of China Motion Telecom International Limited (Thina Motion" or "the Company") and its subsidiaries 

(collectively, "the Group") for the year ended 3 1  March 2002.  In the year under review, performance of the Group improved following its 

restructuring and focused efforts on the development of cross-border value-added telecom businesses. The Group's consolidated turnover for 

the financial year under review was HK$721,988,000, representing a decrease of 6.0% over the previous year. The decrease was mainly 

attributable to the continuous decline of paging subscribers and the reduced revenue from mobile related services, with part of the decrease 

offset by higher turnover from the Group's IDD business. 

The Group's gross profit for the year amounted to HK$344,238,000 with a gross margin of 47.7%, which approximates the previous 

year's gross margin of 48.0%. 

Loss attributable to shareholders for the year amounted to HK$130,963,000 and has significantly reduced by 38.3% over the previous 

year. The loss was mainly attributable to the aggregate provision of HK$188,632,000 for the Group's properties and obsolete telecommunications 

equipment in the first half year. Excluding the provision for properties and obsolete telecommunications equipment, the Group's operating 

performance was profitable during both the first and second half years. 

As there is a loss per share of 24.92 HK cents, the Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a final dividend. 

Seizing Opportunities with Well Defined Market Position 

Basing on its well established foundation, the Group is now poised to explore the golden opportunities unraveling in the telecommunication 

business. Since 1 June 2002, the Group has resolved to withdraw from its paging operations in Hong Kong and concentrate resources on 

developing cross-border value-added telecom services. With the Group's operational experience in the telecom markets in China and Hong 

Kong, and its established brand name and customer base, the Group is confident that it is in a good position to capture cross-border telecom 

service opportunities. 

With the formal accession of China to the World Trade Organization in December 2001, China is poised to speed up the opening of its 

telecom market. One can envisage that the China telecom services market will develop in various directions. Telecom operators, local and 

foreign, will aggressively tap the market and compete for market share and return. 



Since commencement of its restructuring in 2000, the Group has concentrated its efforts in becoming a value added service operator 

and IDD service provider in the Greater China region. The Group's management and staff are apprised of this corporate vision and are committed 

to the following development strategies: 

1. Development of current core businesses; 

2. Launching of high value added telecom services according to market demands, with emphasis on cross-border features; 

3. Development and maintenance of long-term mutually beneficial relationships with network operators and equipment manufacturers. 

Sustained Development of Core Businesses 

During the year, the Group restructured its businesses and discontinued non-profitable telecare and Internet operations. Besides, due to 

the continuously shrinking paging market in Hong Kong, a major business decision was made to dispose of its paging operation which took 

effect from 1 June 2002. Consequent to the restructure, the Group will allocate more resources to develop value-added IDD and mobile related 

businesses with long-term growth potential. 

iDD business contributed a growing turnover and profit since its inception in early 2000 and will remain a strong driver of the Group's 

future business turnover. 

In December 2001, the Group successfully obtained the Mobile Virtual Network Operator licence in Hong Kong, and the preparatory 

work to launch mobile related services is in progress. It is expected that the mobile related services mainly focused on cross-border features 

will be launched shortly. 

Optimize Distribution Channels in Both Hong Kong and China 

"CM Concept", the main retail and distribution channels of the Group, provides the link to distribute products and service our customers. 

While keen market competition of mobile related products and sewices persists, "CM Concept' will continue to enhance its market coverage 

and provide a wider range of value-added services and telecom products. 







Market Overview 

The aftermath of the global telecom bubble of 2001 is many unsolved aftereffects: the notable ones are the questionable profitability of 

3G mobile phone businesses; high debt level telecom companies; short technology cycles and sluggish demand for telecom services. The 

poor results announced by some major telecom companies in the first half of 2002 evinced the challenging operating environment of the telecom 

industry. There is no sign of improvement in sight. Investors are pessimistic about the earning potential of telecom companies, rendering"the 

prices of most telecom companies shares under pressure. 

During last year, cut-throat competition amongst mobile network operators in Hong Kong abated. Operators were beginning to be aware 

of the fact that short-term price competition would result in long-term losses; they resorted to the generation of more revenue from each customer 

by providing value-added services. It is beyond expectation that the official granting of 3G mobile phone operator licenses in Hong Kong has 

not led to the tide of acquisition and merger in the market as anticipated. 

The boom of mobile phone market caused the paging market in Hong Kong to 

continue to decline The information released by the Office of Telecommunications 
c*qsf i l i r r r i l . r ,  + 1 

Authority of Hong Kong showed that over the past year the number of paging subscribers 

in Hong Kong dropped at an average rate of 2 3% per month The consensus of the 

telecom industry is that the paging industry will continue to wither in the foreseeable 

future until the number of paging subscribers drops to a much lower level 

Amidst the uncertain operating environment, the telecom market in China keeps 

mushrooming. Low penetration rate, high growth rate and large operating scale in the The Group entered into MOU agreement with Ericsson 
to join forces in developing MVNO business 

China telecom market compares favorably with other developed regions. These are 

also the major factors attracting the attention of the global investors. However, despite China's formal accession to the WTO and the promise 

to gradually open up its domestic telecom market to foreign investors, no substantial progress for foreign investment into the China telecom 

market has materialized due to the delay in the formulation of relevant laws and regulations. 

During the year, the China telecom market maintains its high growth rate. By the end of 2001, domestic mobile phone subscribers numbered 

189 million, an increase of 31% over the previous year, while fixed line subscribers increased to 207 million, up 16% over the previous year. 

As for revenue growth, mobile related services again out-performed fixed line communication services, with a growth rate of 14% and 9% 

respectively during the year. 



Driven by the measures taken by the Ministry of Information Industry of China to further enhance 

competition in the domestic telecom industry, the China Telecom Group, the only fixed line operator in China, 

was finally split into two, marking the opening of the domestic telecom market and the intensification of 

competition 

In recent years, as major network operators in China become aware of the importance of gaining market share, they gradually take 

marketing measures to secure customer base through cooperation with third party value-added service providers. As one of the most experienced 

providers of mobile related services and value-added services in China, China Motion is in a good position over other competitors in securing 

relevant business opportunities. 

Business Review 
During the year, the sluggish global economy showed no sign of significant improvement, Although there was evidence of economic 

data improvements in the United States, it served only as short-term stimulation of the economy of Hong Kong. High unemployment rate and 

ongoing economic transformation had adversely affected the local market, with the telecom businesses being one of the hard-hit sectors. 

In view of the market changes, the Group restructured its businesses and discontinued non-profitable telecare and Internet operations. 

Besides, given the continuous decline of the paging market of Hong Kong, and the fact that China Motion Telecom Holdings Limited ("CMTH"), 

a strategic partner of the Group in China, has disposed of its domestic paging business earlier this year, the Group made a major business 

pF- Mr Anthony S K WONG. Director-General of 

decision to dispose of its paging operation which took effect from 1 June 2002. The Group will 

allocate more resources for the development of value-added telecom business with long-term growth 

potential. At the end of 2001, the Group successfully obtained the mobile virtual network operator 

licence, and the preparation to launch this new business is at  full speed, with new services expected to 

be launched formally in the third quarter of the year. 

Among existing businesses, IDD business, which commenced operation in 2C00, showed remarkable 

performance and has become a major revenue contributor for the Group, with turnover surging from 
OFTA, visit lo China Motion's exhibition booth in 

ying, the Group's Chairman 
early March, asaccompanied byMrHauTung- HK$16,129,000 in the first year of operation to HK$229,515,000 for the year, representing a 1 3  

times increase and comprised 31.8% of the Group's total turnover. However, the growth was offset by 

the decrease in turnover from mobile related services and paging business. Accordingly, the Group recorded a slight decrease in turnover 

for the year, down 6.0% to HK$ 721,988,000 



Due to the poor economic sentiment and property market, the Group decided, as a prudent step, to make a one-off provision of 

HK$106,842,000 for impairment and revaluation deficit on properties, and a provision of HK$81,790,000 for obsolete telecom equipment 

and other fixed assets in the first half of the year. The Group believes that these provisions will more truly reflect the operational position of 

the overall business. To cope with the needs of its core businesses (IDD and mobile related services), the Group has also completed restructuring 

its management and operation resources respectively. 

Performance of Core Businesses 

%DD Business 

As China in-bound traffic continue to expand coupled with excellent strategies and cooperative partners, 

IDD operation continued to show strong growth and became the Group's major growth contributor. During the 

year, IDD charges continue to decline while the call traffic volume recorded a significant growth. By the end of 

March 2002, the Group's IDD voice traffic exceeded 7 0  million minutes per month, with the volume growth 

trend continues. 

Apart from the increasing usage volume stimulated by the reducing tariff, the Grouo's geographical 

network coverage of IDD business also continues its expansion. Besides Mainland China, Hong Kong and 

North America, newly opened regions for services included Singapore and South Korea. During the year, 

China Motion at Hong Kong Informalion 
lnfraslructure Expo 2002 turnover from the Group's IDD operation was HK$229,515,000,  representing a remarkable growth of 

133.7% over the previous year. 

To further enhance the quality and efficiency of the Group's voice services to cope with the increasing traffic, the Group announced on 

16  May 2002 the installation of Nortel Networks' DMS global service platform and related facilities, including Passport' 7480  ATM multi-function 

switcher. 

Beside wholesale voice operations, the Group also launched its IDD product for retail consumers during the year. On 2 0  May 2002 at the 

eve of the 2002  FlFA World Cup Korea Japan, the Group announced the introduction of phone cards for roaming services across the China 

(Hong KongtJapan-Korea region in partnership with China Telecom. Due to its unique design and the World Cup effect, the product enjoyed 

overwhelming market response upon its launch to the market. Given the success, the Group plans to continue to introduce more IDD products 

for end-users in the foreseeable future in order to explore new revenue sources. 



obile Related Services 

Turnover from mobile related services was HK$ 131,070,000 during the year, representing a decrease 

of 28.9% as compared with the previous year. The decrease was mainly due to the decline in service 

revenue resul t ing f rom t h e  drop of average revenue per user, which is common wi th  the 

market trend. 

In December 2001, the Group successfully obtained the Mobile Virtual Network Operator licence in Hong Kong The Group expects to 

launch the new services shortly to attract new sources of revenue The gradual opening up of China s telecom market is only a matter 

of time with mobile related services being a new business opportunity for the Group The Group, together with its strategic partner 

CMTH, is exploring to participate in mobile related operations in other provinces outside Guangdong The Group sees an opportunity 

to become a value added service supplier in the mobile related business in the Greater China region with cross border services 

as its main driver of business 

Distributions and Retail Chain 

Despite a poor market sentiment, consumers desire to purchase and replace mob le phones was not much affected More mobile 

sewice subscribers tended to transfer to other service providers upon expiry of original contracts for better terms. The introduction of more 

varieties of stylish mobile phone products and accessories, together with the introduction of new products such as prepaid phone cards also 

contributed to an increase in the revenue for the Groups retail shops As a result, sales for the year from the Groups distributions and retail 

chain increased by 12 2% to HK$165,336,000 

The turnover of repair services for mobile phones and pagers declined by 58 0% to HK$19,376,000 in line with the consumers' demand 

essaging Services 

As the demand for paging services in Hong Kong continues to shrink, the Group made a series of positive 

adjustments to consolidate resources and transform its businesses. Paging business is no longer the core business 

of the Group, and the corresponding income is declining. The performance of the Group's paging operations continue 

to deteriorate and recorded a turnover of HK$136,901,000, representing a decrease of 28.1%. Nevertheless, the 

paging operations remained profitable for the year despite the continuous drop in turnover and subscribers. 



In the circumstances, the Group finally resolved to dispose of its paging business in Hong Kong which took effect from 1 June 2002. 

Discontinued Operations 

During the year, telecare service recorded a turnover of HK$4,053,000, a decrease of 68.3% over the previous year, while turnover 

from Internet and e-commerce operations was HK$1,429,000, a decrease of 94.9% over the previous year. These two operations were 

discontinued and disposed of by the Group with effect from December 2001. 

L 

Long-Term investment 

The Group's long-term investment of HK$247,733,000 in mobile services related project in Guangdong as at  3 1  March 2002 had been 

contributing stable revenue and profits to the Group in the past five years. It is anticipated that no additional funding is required for this investment 

which will continue to make contributions in future turnover and profits 

New investments of HK$80,159,000 in VolP project in China was made during the year 

It is anticipated that this project will make contributions in the long term as China's telecom 

market opens The funds required for the initial phase will be provided from the Group s 

existing resources and internally generated cash flows Further investments with greater 

geographical coverage will depend on the pace of relaxation of telecom rules in China. 

Prospects 
China's official accession to the WTO announced in December 2001  marks a new era for the development of the telecom industry in the 

PRC. Based on the Group's solid background and profound understanding of the China's domestic telecom industry, together with the close 

strategic relationship with CMTH and other major PRC network operators, the Group will explore the opportunities available to it to develop 

China's domestic telecom business. The Group will play an active role to bridge China and foreign parties in investment, technological and 

marketing aspects. 

Meanwhile, building on its current foundation, the Group will enlarge its market share, improve the profit margin and operational efficiency 

and strengthen its business development efforts. The Group will also explore new distribution channels and develop more innovative value- 

added services and leverage on its strategic partnerships to increase the benefits for its customers, employees and shareholders. 



For the Group s IDD business, the reduction in tariff in recent years has stimulated a significant growth in IDD call 

volume However, this growth in volume has been partially offset by the decline in charges To maintain growth in revenue 

and market share, the Group is actively expanding its network coverage from Greater China to other Asian countries, 

North America and Europe It is expected that the Group's IDD call volume will continue to grow 

For the mobile related business, the Group plans to launch mobile sewices in the third quarter of 2002, following 

its obtaining of the Mobile Virtual Network Operator licence at the end of 2001 China Motion will leverage its experience 

in cross-border services to provide mobile services to its customers 

Meanwhile, the cut-throat price war in the Hong Kong mobile telecom market has come to an end after network operators recorded 

losses Recently, most major network operators have increased the basic voice sewices fees and charge their customers for various new 

fees It is expected that this will help stabilize the Hong Kong mobile telecom market while providing a different start-up environment for the 

Group s mobile virtual network operations to be launched 

It is expected that the number of China mobile phone subscribers will maintain steady growth in the coming year, while average income 

from each subscriber will continue to decline However, the relatively lower penetration rate in the mobile telecom 

service market in China and the intensifying competition among leading operators will provide growth space for 

value added telecom operators, including China Motion The Group is actively identifying new opportunities in the 

domestic mobile telecom projects in different provinces in China and will participate in such projects subject to 

relevant domestrc regulations The management believes that there are opportunities available to the Group 

based on its past experiences in investment, technological and sales aspects in China s mobile telecom market 

As for distributions and retail chain, consumers desire to purchase and to replace mobile phones was not 

much affected by the sluggish economy and mobile service subscribers tend to change their service providers 

frequently Such phenomenon is expected to continue With the advent of more mobile virtual network operators, 

it is expected that more innovative value added services will be launched Shorter life cycle of such new products 

will stimulate the consumers interest for more new products and sewices It is expected that these factors will benefit the business of the 

CM Concept retail chain 



Financial Position 

The Group adopts prudent and stable financial strategy. The management aims at deploying the Group's resources effectively and practically 

to achieve the best use of funds. As at 3 1  March 2002, cash and bank balances of the Group amounted to HKS118,159,000. Total bank 

borrowings were HK$127,157,000, out of which HKS123,595,000 was denominated in Hong Kong dollars while HKS3,562,000 was denominated 

in US dollars. The bank loans are repayable by monthly instalments and the maturity date for the last instalment is August 2013. As a t  3 1  

March 2002, the total borrowings as a percentage of shareholders' funds were maintained at healthy gearing ratio of 17% which is similar to  

last year's level. 

During the year, the Group financed its operation with internally generated cash flows, banking facilities and the proceeds from two corporate 

fund raising activities in the financial year ended 3 1  March 2001. Net proceeds from those fund raising activities was HKS303,000,000, most 

of which was utilized as proposed, while the balance of HK$54,309,000 will be used in the coming financial years in the acquisition of other 

telecom equipment and for enhancement of network quality as planned. 

As at 3 1  March 2002, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$93,000,000, of which HK$I  2,000,000 was utilized. 

Cash and bank balances together with unutilized banking facilities at the balance sheet date is sufficient for the Group to discharge its debts 

and to fund its operational expenditures. 

Exposures to Fluctuations In Exchange Rates 

The Group has exposure to the fluctuations in Renminbi and United States dollars as certain expenses payable and trade receivables 

from customers are settled in these currencies respectively. 

Staff and Remuneration Policies 

As at 3 1  March 2002, the Group employed a workforce of approximately 605. Total staff costs incurred during the year was HKS148,704,000, 

representing a decrease of 22.7% over the previous year, The Group's remuneration policy has been in line with the prevailing market Practice 

including discretionary bonus and remunerates its employees based on their performance and contribution. 

In addition to remuneration, the Group offers a welfare package to its employees, including provident fund, medical insurance, travel and personal 

accident insurance coverage. The Group also grants share options to directors and certain employees of the Group for retention and motivation. 



Executive Director 
HAU Tung Ying (Chairman) 

HAU Tung Ying, aged 48, is the founder, Chairman and Co-CEO of the Group, He is currently the Chairman of Internet 

and Telecom Association of Hong Kong. As the Chairman, he is mainly responsible for strategic planning and corporate 

policies as well as overseeing the Group’s operations. Mr. Hau comes with more than 25 years of working experience,?in 

the telecom industry, including over 10 years in Guangzhou Telecommunications Bureau and, from 1985  to 1989, as the 

Director and General Manager of Shenda Telephone Company Limited, a joint venture between Cable &Wireless PIC and 

Shenzhen Municipal Government, Mr. Hau graduated from Zhong Shan University with a Bachelor’s degree in Physics. 

SHUl Ming Hua 

SHUl Ming Hua, aged 63, is the Executive Director of the Company Mr Shui has over 30 years of experience in accounting, 

finance and management in companies established in the PRC and has worked as a financial conboller of a large Chinese enterprise 

in Hong Kong He also holds directorships in various subsidiaries of the Company. 

-7 CHAN Wai Lun 
I 

CHAN Wai Lun, aged 50, is the Executive Director and COO of the Group Before joining the Group in 1997,  Mr Chan has 

over 24 years of experience in electronic industry and trading fields Mr Chan graduated from Zhong Shan University 

with a Bachelors degree in Physics 

Nan-Executive Director 
-7 YANG Jun (Vice-chairman) 

YANG Jun, aged 38, is the Vice-chairman of the Group and Co CEO of China Motion Telecom Holdlngs Limited (formerly 

known as China Motion Telecom Development Company), which is the Company’s malor business partner of several joint 

venture companies in the PRC Mr Yang has over 10 years of experience in the telecom industry in the PRC 



Ll Yi Sheng 

LI Yi Sheng, aged 66, was formerly the head of Guangdong Posts and Telecommunications Administrative Bureau and held 

the position of Director and General Manager of Telpo Communications (Group) Limited. Mr. Li has over 40 years of experience 

in the telecom industry 

Timothy Allen BRIDGEWATER 

Timothy Allen BRIDGEWATER, aged 41, is the Co Founder of Interlink Management Corporation Mr Bridgewater has developed 

numerous deals between Asian and US businesses for clients including CP Group, Telecom Asia, and Ford Motor Company 

Mr. Bridgewater serves on various advisory and executive boards and is currently the CEO of TurboWave, Inc , a broadband 

wireless technology company Mr Bridgewater holds a Bachelor of Science in Business Finance from Brigham Young University 

and Post Graduate Studies in International Economics from the University of Utah. 

YUNG Yung Cheng, Frank 

YUNG Yung Cheng, Frank, aged 68, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company He was in senior management 

and Chief Executive Officer of a number of listed companies in Singapore He has also been active in public services in 

Singapore, having served as Chairman of the Telecommunications Authority of Singapore (1974 1986)  He is currently an 

independent director of several listed companies in Singapore 

-"I HO Chung Tai, Raymond 

Dr the Hon Raymond HO Chung Tal, MBE, JP, aged 63, is a member of the Legislabve Council (Engineering Funcbonal Constituency) 

and Past President of Hong Kong Insbtubon of Engineers, former Chairman of Transport Advisory Commrttee and Hong Kong Technology 

Committee of the ITDC, former Council Chairman of the City University of Hong Kong 

Dr Ho has had 39  years of wideranging, large magnitude and complex infrastructure projects in Hong Kong and United Kingdom 

Dr Ho obtained his degrees at The University of Hong Kong University of Manchester and the City University of London He has 

also been awarded Hon Doctor Degree in Business Administration by the City University of Hong Kong and Hon Doctor Degree of 

Laws of Manchester University of UK 



Alternate Director 
HU Tiejun 

HU Tiejun, aged 51, joined the Group in 1993 and serves as the Chief Scientist of the Group. Currently, Mr. Hu is responsible 

for the Group's technology research and development, specialising in system design and global data network management. 

Mr. Hu brings to the Group more than 20  years of experience specialising in areas of computer systems and data 

communication networking, Mr. Hu graduated from Zhong Shan University with a Bachelor's degree in Physics. 

Senior Management 
CHEN Xiaodan, aged 41, joined the Group in 1994. She is the Executive Vice President of Corporate Management Division. 

Holder of a Master degree, Ms. Chen is responsible for corporate development, business planning and analysis, resources 

planning, operational management and MIS of the Group. Ms. Chen has over 18 years of experience in the telecom field. 

Before joining the Group, she has been working in telecom college and government authority of telecom in the PRC. 

CHENG Eun Ton, aged 51, joined the Group in 2001. He is the Executive Vice President of Human Resources Division. 

Mr. Cheng is responsible for the human resources development and management functions of the Group. Mr. Cheng has 

over 30 years of working experience with the last 2 1  years in human resources management. Before joining the Group, 

Mr. Cheng held a key position in human resources management in PCCW. 

PAN Rubo, aged 42, joined the Group in 1996. He is the Executive Vice President of Business Relationship Division. Mr. 

Pan holds a Bachelor's degree and is responsible for the corporate relations, business coordination and development 

functions of the Group. He has over 2 1  years of experience in the telecom industry. Before joining the Group, Mr. Pan 

has 1 3  years experience in the Guangdong Posts and Telecommunications Administrative Bureau. 

TONG May Tak, Tom, aged 54, joined the Group in 2001. He is the Vice President of Legal Affairs Division. Mr. Tong is 

a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong and holds a Ph.D degree in civil laws. He is responsible for the legal affairs of 

the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. Tong held a senior position in Business Development for Greater China in PCCW. 



WU Ying Keung, aged 46, re-joined the Group in 2001. He is the Executive Vice President of Corporate Finance Division. 

Mr. Wu is responsible for the Group's overall corporate finance functions. He has over 23 years of experience in the Finance 

and Corporate Finance field. Before rejoining the Group, Mr. Wu held key positions in finance and management in various 

companies and professional firms in Hong Kong and overseas. 

ZHAO Wenmhong, aged 45, joined the Group in 1998. He is the Vice President of General Affairs Division. Mr. Zhao is 

responsible for the property management, procurement and general administration functions of the Group. He has over 26 

years of working experience in various institutions in the PRC. Before joining the Group, Mr. Zhao held a key position in general 

management in one of the largest international corporations in Shenzhen. 

ZHU Hongbo, aged 40, joined the Group in 2000. He is the Executive Vice President of Corporate Communications Division 

and Chief Executive Officer of CM Concept retail business, responsible for brand development and marketing affairs. Mr. 

Zhu has over 12 years of experience in media and communications field, Before joining the Group, Mr. Zhu held a key position 

in sales and marketing in a Hong Kong listed company. 





The directors submit their report together with the audited accounts for the year ended 31 March 2002. -
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS 
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the accounts. 

An analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the 'Group"1 for the year by business and 


geographical segments is set out in note 3 to the accounts. 


RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page 34. 

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend. 

Idl.1HM§J 
Movements in the reserves and accumulated losses of the Group and the Company during the year are set out on pages 36 to 37. 

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES 
In accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and the Company's Bye·Laws, the Company has no distributable reserve as 


at 31 March 2002. 


FIXED ASSETS 
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out in note 13 to the accounts. 

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS 
Details of the movements in share capital and warrants of the Company are set out in note 25 to the accounts. 

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 2. 

PRE,EMPTIVE RIGHTS 
There is no provision for pre'emptive rights under the Company's Bye-Laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of 


Bermuda. 
 ... , .• 
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of 


the Company's shares during the year. 
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The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report were: 

Mr HAU Tung Ying 


Mr SHUI Ming Hua 


Mr CHAN Wai Lun 


Mr YANG Jun' 


Mr LI Yi Sheng' 


Mr Timothy Allen BRIDGEWATER' 


Mr YUNG Yung Cheng, Frank" 


Dr HO Chung Tai, Raymond' , (appointed on 1 August 2001) 


Mr YUNG Ha Kuk Victor' , (resigned on 1 August 2001) 


Mr HU Tiejun (Alternate director to Mr LI Yi Sheng) 


Non-executive director s 


Independent non-executive directors 


In accordance with Bye·law 85(2) of the Bye-Laws of the Company, Dr HO Chung Tai, Raymond retire s from office and, being eligible, offers 


himsellfor re·election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. 


In accordance with Bye-law 86( I) of the Bye·Laws of the Company, Mr CHAN Wai Lun, Mr LI Yi Sheng and Mr YUNG Yung Cheng, Frank retire from 


office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re·election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. 


DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS 
None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company which 


is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation. 


DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS 
During the year, the Group had transactions with Liking Industrial Limited (' Liking") and First Active Investments Limited (' First Active") as 


disclosed in note 32(a) to the accounts. Mr HAU Tung Ying was interested in these transactions to the extent that he is a beneficial shareholder of 


Liking and First Active respectively. 


Save as disclosed herein , no other contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries 


was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at 


any time during the year. 


BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR iMANAGENlENT 
Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are set out on pages 18 to 21. 
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Report of the Directors ' 	 ;,~.e-<..:i -
DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES 
At 31 March 2002, the interests of the directors and chief executive in the shares of the Company or any associated corporations (within the 

meaning of the Securities (Oisclosure of Interests) Ordinance ("SOl Ordinance")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 29 

of the SOl Ordinance were as follows: 

Number of ordinary shares held 

Personal Family Corporate Other 

interests interests Interests interests 

(Note) 

HAU Tung Ying - 270,247,500 

SHUI Ming Hua 250,000 

CHAN Wai Lun 267,000 

HU Tiejun 292,000 

Note : 	The 270,2 47,500 shares are legally and beneficially owned by Goldtop Holdings Limited ("Gold top'), Mr HAU Tung Ying and hi s wife, Madam TlNG Vat Shuk, 

are both directors of Goldtop in which they hold 30,000 and 20,000 ordinary shares respectively, representing 60% and 40% of the entire issued share 

capital of Goldtop. 

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2002, none of the directors and chief executive (including their spouse and children under 18 years of 

age) had any other interests in shares in or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SOl 

Ordinance) which had been entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 29 of the SOl Ordinance. 

Apart from the shares as disclosed above, share options to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company have been granted to HAU Tung Ying, 

SHUI Ming Hua , CHAN Wai Lun, YANG Jun and HU Tiejun pursuant to the approved China Motion Employees' Share Option Scheme. Information in 

relation to their share options during the year were shown in the following section under the heading "Information on Share Options". 



INFORMAnON ON SHARE OPTIONS 
l. 	 Movements of share options, which have been granted under China Motion Employees' Share Option Scheme, during the year are listed 

below in accordance with Rule 17.0701 the Listing Rules: 

No. of No. of No. of No. of 

outstanding options options outstanding 

options granted lapsed options at 

Exercise Exercise Vesting at 1 April during during 31 March 

Category Date of grant price period period 2001 the year the year 2002 

HKS 

Directors: 

HAU Tung Ying 20 March 2001 0.75 20/03/02 - 19/03/1 I 20/03/02 - 20/03/04 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 

SHUI Ming Hua 25 February 2000 3.19 25/02/01-17/03/08 N/A 378,499 378,499 

17 October 2000 1.22 17/10/01 - 17/03/08 N/A 432,570 432,570 

20 March 2001 0.75 20/03/02 - 19/03/11 20/03/02 - 20/03/04 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 

CHAN Wai Lun 25 February 2000 3.19 25/02/01 - 17/03/08 N/A 378,499 378,499 

17 October 2000 1.22 17/10/01 - 17/03/08 N/A 432,570 432,570 

20 March 2001 0.75 20/03/02 - 19/03/11 20/03/02 - 20/03/04 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 

YANG Jun 29 June 1998 0.751 29/06/99 - 17/03/08 N/A 257,483 257,483 

25 February 2000 3.19 25/02/01 - 17/03/08 N/A 252,333 252,333 

17 October 2000 1.22 17/ 10/0 1 - 17/03/08 N/A 288,380 288,380 

20 March 2001 0.75 20/03/02 - 19/03/11 20/03/02 - 20/03/04 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 

HU Tiejun 19 August 1999 2.00 19/08/00 - 17/03/08 N/A 252,333 252,333 

17 October 2000 1.22 17/10/01-17/03/08 N/A 288,380 288,380 

20 March 2001 0.75 20/03/02 - 19/03/11 20/03/02 - 20/03/04 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 
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. Report of the Directors -INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 
No. 01 No. of No. of No. of 

outstanding options options outstanding 

options granted lapsed options at 

Exercise Exercise Vesting at 1 April during during 31 March 

Category Date of grant price period period 2001 the year the year 2002 

HKS 

Continuous Contract 

Employees of 

the Group: 29 June 1998 0.751 29/06/99 - 17/03/08 N/A 329,576 (102,993) 226,583 

19 August 1999 2.00 19/08/00 - 17/03/08 N/A 1,627,287 (406,8221 1,220,465 

25 February 2000 3.19 25/02/01 - 17/03/08 N/A 82,394 82,394 

17 October 2000 1.22 17/10/01-17/03/08 N/A 2,685,541 (599,936) 2,085,605 

20 March 200 I 0.75 20/03/02 - 19/03/11 20/03/02 - 20/03/04 23,600,000 - (7,400,000) 16,200,000 

28 January 2002 0.75 28/01/03 - 27/01/12 28/01/03 - 28/01/05 - 1,850,000 1,850,000 

(Note (1)) 

Notes: 

III The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date on which the options were granted was HKSO.71. 

(21 During the year, no options were exercised or cancelled. 

2. 	 In assessing the value of the share options granted on 28 January 2002, the Black-Scholes option pricing model (the "Black-Scholes Model') 

has been used. The Black·Scholes Model is one of the most generally accepted methodologies used to calculate the value of options and is 

one of the recommended option pricing models as set out in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The variables of the Black-Scholes Model 

include, expected life of the options, risk·f ree intere st rate, expected volatility and expected dividend of the shares of the Company. 

In assessing the value of the share options granted during the year to employees, the following variables have been applied to the Black­

Scholes Model: 

(a) 	 The expected life is estimated to be 5 years from the date of grant (the "Measurement Date"). 

(b) 	 The risk-free rate applied to the Black-Scholes Model is 5.11 %, which represents the yield of the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes 

corresponding to the expected life of the options as at the Measurement Date. 

(c) 	 The expected volatility used in the calculation is 64.20% and represents the standard deviation of the daily clo sing share prices of the 

Company in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the last twelve months from the Measurement Date. 

(d) 	 The expected dividend is estima ted to be 1.73% based on the average dividend yield of past 5 years. 
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 
Using the Black-Scholes Model in assessing the value of share options granted during the year, the options would have an aggregate value 

of approximately HKS721,500 represented as follows: 

Number of share Estimated value 

options granted Estimated value of options granted 

during the year per option during the year 

HKS 	 HKS 

Employees 	 1,850,000 0.39 721,500 

Total 721,500 

In assessing the aggregate value of the share options, no adjustment has been made for possible future forfeiture of the options. No charge 

is recognised in the profit and loss account in respect of the value of options granted during the year. The share options granted wiil be 

recognised in the balance sheet at the time when the share options are exercised. Share capital will be credited at par for each share 

issued upon the exercise of share options, with share premium credited at the excess of net proceeds received over total share capital 

credited. 

It should be noted that the value of options calculated using the Black-Scholes Model is based on various assumptions and is only an 

estimate of the value of share options granted during the year. It is possible that the financial benefit accruing to the grantee of an option 

will be considerably different from the value determined under the Black-Scholes Model. 

3. 	 Summary of China Motion Employees' Share Option Scheme (the "Scheme') adopted on 18 March 1998 (as latest amended on 2 February 

2001) disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules was as follows: 

I. 	 Purpose of the Scheme As incentive to employees 

2. 	 Participants of the Scheme Eligible employees including executive directors 

3. 	 Total number of share available for issue under the Scheme 34,626,094 (6.59%) 


and % on issued share capital at 31 March 2002 


4. 	 Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme 25% of the total number of shares in respect of which the Company 

may grant options under the Scheme and subject to Chapter 

17 of the Listing Rules 

5. 	 The period within which the shares must be taken up For options granted before 20 March 2001: 

under an option 	 At any time after the first anniversary of the Date of Grant 

and before the tenth anniversary of the Date of Grant or 

the expiry of the Scheme, whichever is earlier 

For 	options granted on/after 20 March 2001: 

At any time after the first anniversary of the Date of Grant 

and before the tenth anniversary of the Date of Grant 



:·n~.. . ".~"," . 
:I~·'''\... ,.... \~ 


/:;.':1.. Report of the Directors 


INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 
6. 	 The minimum period for which an option must be held 

before it can be exercised 

7. 	 The amount payable on application or acceptance of the 

option and the period within which payments or calls must 

or may be made or loans for such purposes must be paid 

S. The basis of determining the exercise price 

9. The remaining life of the Scheme 

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS , 

.... . 


For options granted before 20 March 2001: 

The first anniversary of the Date of Grant 

For options granted on/after 20 March 2001: 

33% - first anniversary of the Date of Grant 

33% - second anniversary of the Date of Grant 

34% - third anniversary of the Date of Grant 

HK$1.00; within 21 days from the Offer Date 

For options granted before 1 September 2001, the exercise price 

is determined by a committee and being the higher of: 

(a) 	 A price being not less than SO% of the average of 

the closing prices of the shares on The Stock 

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("SEHK") as stated 

on the SEHK's daily quotation sheets for the 5 

consecutive trading days immediately preceding the 

Offer Date; and 

(b) 	 The nominal value of a share 

For options granted 	on/alter 1 September 2001, the exercise 

price is determined by a committee and subject to Chapter 17 

of the Listing Rules 

The Scheme Period will end on 17 March 200S 

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 16(!) of the SDI Ordinance shows that, as at 31 March 2002, the Company had 

been notified of the following substantial shareholders' interests, being 10% or more of the issued share capital of the Company. 

Name of shareholder 

Goldtop Holdings Limited (Note (1)) 


HAU Tung Ying (Note (2)) 


TlNG Vat Shuk (Note (3)) 


Number of % of the issued 

shares held share capital 

270,247,500 51.43 

270,247,500 51.43 

270,247,500 51.43 

Noles: (I) Goldtop Holdings Limited ("Goldtop") is owned as to 60% by Mr HAU Tung Ying and 40% by Madam TING Vat Shuk. 

(2) Mr HAU Tung Ving is deemed to be interested in the 270.247.500 shares held by Goldtop due to his 60% direct interest in Goldtop. 

(3) Madam TING Vat Shuk is deemed to be interested in the 270,247,500 shares held by Goldtop due to her 40% direct interest in GoldlOp . 

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2002, no other person or corporation had any interest in the share capital of the Company as recorded 

in the register required to be kept under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance as having an interest in 10% or more of the issued share capital of 

the Company. 
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Report of the Directors ; 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any subs'tantial part of the business of the Group were entered into 

or existed during the year. 

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 
In addition to that disclosed in note 16(a) to the accounts, the Group had the following transactions with connected parties which were carried out 

in the normal course of business and on terms arranged by or between the parties during the year ended 31 March 2002: 

Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Income/(expenses) 

(a) 	 China Motion Telecom Holdings Limited ("CMTH") 

Net sales of pagers and telecommunications equipment 5,692" 16,312' 

Maintenance service income 14,332 35,307 

leasing income 9,342 26,579 

Airtime income 2,640 2,640 

Commission income 727 

Disposal of microwave telecommunications equipment 61,495 

Recharge of paging service expenses, operator's cost and data line rental (6,902) (33 ,714) 

Dataline expenses (1,101) (1,1 2 1 ) 

(b) China Motion Netcom Services Co, ltd. Iformerly known as 

China 	Motion Mobile Telecom Services Co. ltd.) ("CM Netcom") 

Provision of technical consultancy and maintenance services 131,070 184,261 

(c) 	 liking Industrial limited 

Rental expenses (316) (1,546) 

(d) 	 First Active Investments Limited 

Disposal of Internet and telecare businesses 15,000 

Included in the amount are net sales of HK$5,073,000 (2001: HK$5,073,000) to Shenzhen China Motion Telecom United Company Ltd. ("SCMTU"), a 

subsidiary of CMTH. 

The above transactions have also been disclosed as related party transactions in note 32(a) to the accounts. 

All the above transactions are disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14 of the listing Rules and in accordance with waivers previously granted by 

the SEHK and/or have been previously announc ed by the Company. 
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (colltinued) 
The independent non-executive directors of the Company have also reviewed these transactions and confirmed that: 

(i) 	 The transactions were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; 

(ii) 	 The transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such transactions or where there is no such 

agreement on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to/from third parties; 

(iii) 	 The transactions were on normal commercial terms and on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the members of the Company are 

concerned; and 

(iv) 	 The respective aggregate values of transactions for each of the agreements with CMTH and CM Netcom did not exceed the respective 

". -. percentage limit specified in the conditional waivers granted to the Company by the SEHK. 
~~ ". 

" 
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS 
The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major customers and suppliers are as follows: 

Sales 

- the largest customer 

- five largest customers combined 

Purchases 

- the largest supplier 

- five largest suppliers combined 

18.2% 

37.9% 

17.5% 

49.5% 

None of the directors, their associated companies or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the 

Company's issued share capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers noted above. 

AUDIT COMMIITEE 
The Group has established an Audit Committee since 26 September 1996. At the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises two 

independent non-executive directors. namely Mr YUNG Yung Cheng, Frank and Dr HO Chung Tai, Raymond and a non-executive director, Mr LI Yi 

Sheng. 

During the current financial year, 3 meetings were held. The Audit Committee has discretion to convene meeting or hold discussion with the 

external auditors without the presence of executive directors. It is empowered to investigate activities within its terms of reference. It has 

discretion to seek information from any employee or obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it considers necessary. 



COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST PRACTICE OF THE LISTING RULES 
The directors are pleased to confirm that throughout the year ended 31 March 2002, the Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice 

as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except that the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term as recommended 

therein. However, all the directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company. 

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO PRACTICE NOTE 19 OF THE LISTING RULES 
In accordance with the requirement under paragraph 3.2.1 of Practice Note 19 of the Listing Rules, the directors of the Company report the 

details of advances to CMTH and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2002 as follows: 

Total 

HKS'OOO 

Trade receivables from 

CMTH 32,401 

CM Netcom 166,721 

SCMTU 68,756 

267,878 

The advances were trade receivables arising from the Group's normal and ordinary course of business and were unsecured, interest-free with 

credit term of 30 - 90 days. 

P.Q~T BAlANCE .SH~ET"~VEl'ITS . 
Details of the significant post balance sheet events are set out in note 34 to the accounts. 

'41,.,,g.] ,;, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong and Pricewaterhou seCoopers, Singapore were the joint auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 

March 2000. 

On 21 August 2000, the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the "SGX-ST') has granted in-principle approval for the conversion of the 

Company's primary listing on the SGX-ST to a secondary listing. Accordingly, the accounts of the Company and of the Group are not required to 

be audited by Certified Public Accountants in Singapore with effect from the financial year ended 31 March 2001. Therefore, PricewaterhouseCoopers, 

Singapore retired as joint auditors and did not seek re-appointment in the annual general meeting held on 28 September 2000. 

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong who retire and, being eligible, oHer themselves for re-appointment. 

On behalf of the Board 

HAU Tung Ying 

Director 

Hong Kong. 22 July 2002 



TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 

CHINA MOTION TELECOM INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) 

We have audited the accounts on pages 34 to 84 which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong 

Kong. 

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS 
The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give 

a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently. 

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion to you. 

BASIS OF 'OPINION 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes 

examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the 

significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are 

appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us 

with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we 

also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 

our opinion . 

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2002 and of the 

Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong 

Kong Companies Ordinance . 

PricewaterhouseCoopers 

Certified Public Accountants 

Hong Kong, 22 July 2002 

~ 
~ 



Note 

2002 

HKS'OOO 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Turnover 

Cost of sales and services 

2 721,988 

(377,750) 

768,433 

(399,466) 

Gross profit 

Other revenues 

Distribution expenses 

Administrative expenses 

Other operating expenses 

Deficit on revaluation of investment properties 

Write-off of goodwill 

Impairment loss on fixed assets 

2 

13(b)&(c) 

344,238 

16,856 

(20,013) 

(258,070) 

(13,842) 

(176,922) 

368,967 

24,613 

(32,358) 

(335,396) 

(2,910) 

(40,968) 

(195,266) 

Operating loss 

Finance costs 

Share of profits before taxation of associated companies 

4 

5 

(107,753) 

(7,515) 

216 

(213,318) 

(15,376) 

6,778 

Loss before taxation 

Taxation 6(a) 

(115,052) 

(14,170) 

(221,916) 

(18,620) 

Loss after taxation 

Minority interests 

(129,222) 

(1,741) 

(240,536) 

28,333 

Loss attributable to shareholder s (130,963) (212,203) 

Dividends 8 

Loss per share 

- Basic 

9 

(24.92) HK cents (48.22) HK cents 

- Diluted NjA N/A 



Note 

Group 
2002 

HKS'OOO 
2001 

HKS'OOO 

Company 
2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Goodwill 
Fixed assets 
Investments in a subsidiary 
Investments in associated companies 
Other long-term investments 

12 
13 
14 
15 
16 

10,298 
264,232 

2,444 
346,832 

19,350 
481,811 

2,228 
266,676 

622,552 409,833 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Receivables and prepayments 
Marketable securities 
Pledged bank deposits 
Bank and cash balances 

17 
18 
19 

20 

8,248 
357,898 

1,107 
6,355 

111,804 

7,063 
390,110 

2,940 
6,377 

202,401 

2,903 

106 

586,394 

20,283 

485,412 608,891 3,009 606,677 
--------------------------------­

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Taxation pay abies 
Borrowings 

21 
6(b) 
22 

180,300 
7,360 

30,543 

284,434 
16,107 
27,270 

962 114,806 

218,203 327,811 962 114,806 

Net current assets 267,209 281,080 2,047 491,871 

Total assets less current liabilities 891,015 1,051,145 624,599 901,704 

Financed by: 
Share capital 
Non-distributable capital reserves 
Contributed surplus 
Accumulated losses 

25 
26 
27 

394,107 
530,951 

(180,067) 

394,107 
517,059 

(35,212) 

394,107 
456,023 

52,854 
(278,385) 

394,107 
456,023 

52,854 
0,280) 

Shareholders' funds 744,991 875,954 624,599 901,704 
--------------------------------­

Minority interests 49,064 57,506 
--------------------------------­

Non-current liabilities 
Borrowings 
Deferred taxation 

22 
6(c) 

96,614 
346 

117,339 
346 

96,960 117,685 
--------------------------------­

891,015 1,051,145 624,599 901,704 

On behalf of the Board 

HAU Tung Ying 
Director 

SHUI Ming Hua 
Director 
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Group 

Non-

distributable 

Share capital Accumulated 

capital reserves losses Total 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

(note 25) (note 26) 

Balance at 1 April 2000 

As previously reported 281,498 3i2,167 200,758 794,423 

EHect of adopting HKSSAP 29 (10,076) (10,076) 

As restated 281,498 312,167 190,682 784,347 

Issue of shares, net of expenses 

Exchange differences arising from investments in 

PRe subsidiaries 

Transfer 

Loss for the year 

112,609 190,847 

354 

13,691 (13,691) 

(212,203) 

303,456 

354 

(212,203) 

Balance at 31 March 2001 394,107 517,059 (35,212) 875,954 

Balance at I April 2001 394,107 517,059 (35,212) 875,954 

Transfer 13,892 (13,892) 

Loss for the year (130,963) (130,963) 

Balance at 31 March 2002 394,107 530,951 (180,067) 744,991 
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• Company 

Share 

capital 

HKS'OOO 

(note 25) 

Non-

distributable 

capital 

reserves 

HKS'OOO 

(note 26) 

Contributed 

surplus 

HKS'OOO 

(note 27) 

Accumulated 

losses 

HKS'OOO 

Total 

HKS'OOO 

Balance at 1 April 2000 28 1,498 265.176 52.854 1.202 600,730 

Issue of shares, net of expenses 112,609 190,847 303,456 

Loss for the year (2,482) (2,482) 

Balance at 31 March 2001 394,107 456,023 52,854 (1,280) 901,704 

Balance at 1 April 2001 394,107 456,023 52,854 (l,280) 901,704 


Loss for the year (277,105) (277,105) 


Balance at 31 March 2002 394,107 456,023 52,854 (278,385) 624,599 



------------------

------------------

Cash outflow from operating activities 

Interest paid 

Interest received 

Interest element of finance leases 

Income tax paid 

Net cash outflow from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Proceeds from disposal affixed assets 

Proceeds from disposal of marketable securities 

Disposal of subsidiaries 

Dividend from listed investments 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Capital contribution to other investment 

Purchase of marketable securities 

Proceeds from disposal 01 associated companies 

Decrease in pledged bank deposits 

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Issue of ordinary shares 

Draw-down of revolving loan 

Repayment of bank loans 

Payment of capital element of finance leases 

Capital contribution from minority shareholders 

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 

Effect of exchange rate changes 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 

Note 

2002 

HKS'OOO 

2001 

HKS'OOO 

28(a) (50,288) 

(7,321) 

1,834 

(194) 

(22,917) 

(35,165) 

(14,934) 

6,556 

(442) 

(11,929) 

(78,886) (55,914) 

63,626 1,820 

3,081 

28(c) 13,939 

73 

(48,199) (59,738) 

(24,299) (14,018) 

(121) (4,500) 

553 

22 6,900 

4,968 (65,829) 

28(b) 

320 ,310 

10,000 

(22,741) (28,643) 

(1,818) (3,668) 

773 9,360 

(13,786) 297,359 

(87,704) 175,616 

199,508 23,538 

354 

29 111,804 199,508 



-1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(a) 	 Basis of preparation 

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong ("HKGAAP") and comply 

with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants {"HKSA"1. This represents a change in the adoption of 

accounting standards for the preparation of accounts from prior years when the accounts were prepared in accordance with 

International Accounting Standards. The directors consider that the financial year ended 31 March 2002 was the first full financial 

year of the Company since its conversion of listing status and it is an opportune moment to effect such change and the investment 

community in Hong Kong is more familiar with HKGAAP which presents the financial position fairly in accordance with market 

perception. There is no material financial impact to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 March 2002 as a result of the 

change in the adoption of accounting standards for the preparation and no adjustments to the comparative figures presented in the 

consolidated accounts in prior periods are considered necessary. 

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of investment properties and; ..., ,
.". . " marketable securities as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 

In current year, the Group early adopted the following revised Statements of Standard Accounting Practice ("HKSSAP") issued by 

HKSA, which will be effective in next financial year and are applicable to the Group : 

HKSSAP I (revised): "Presentation of financial statements" 

HKSSAP 11 (revised): "Foreign currency translation" 

HKSSAP 15 (revised): "Cashflow statement" 

Early adoption of these accounting standards has no material impact on the Group's accounts. 

HKSSAP I (revised) has been revised to present, as a separate component of its accounts, the statement of changes in equity. It has 

replaced the requirement for presenting the statement of recognised gains and losses. Although the adoption is required for periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2002, the Group has opted the revised standard in its 2002 accounts. 

HKSSAP 15 (revised) has been revised to classify cash flows under operating, investing or financing activities. Although adoption is 

required for periods beginning on or after I January 2002, the Group has opted the revised standard in its 2002 accounts. 
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Notes to the Accounts 

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these accounts are set out below: 

(b) 	 Group accounting 

(j) 	 Consolidation 

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March . Subsidiaries are 

those entities whose financial and operating policies are controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Company so that the Company 

is able to benefit from their activities that are controlled by the Group. 

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss account from 

the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. 

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation. 

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference between the proceeds of the sale and the Group's 

share of its net assets together with any unamortised goodwill or goodwill taken to reserves and exchange difference and which 

was not previously charged or recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account. 

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the profit and loss account and net assets of subsidiaries. 

In the Company's balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The 

results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable. 

Iii) 	 Associated companies 

An associated company is a company, not being a subsidiary, in which an equity interest is held for the long-term and significant 

influence is exercised in its management. 

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group's share of the results of associated companies for the year, and the 

consolidated balance sheet includes the Group's share of the net assets of the associated companies and also goodwill (net of 

accumulated amortisation) on acquisition. 

In the Company's balance sheet, the investments in associated companies are stated at cost less provision for impairment 

losses. The results of associated companies are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and 

receivable. 

Equity accounting is discontinued when the carrying amount of the investment in an associated company reaches zero, unless 

the Group has incurred obligations or guaranteed obligations in respect of the associated company. 



-wi 
-1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES !continuedj 
Ic) 	 Translation of foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange-rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities 

expressed in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. 

Exchange differences arising in these cases are dealt with in the profit and loss account. 

The balance sheet of subsidiaries and associated companies expressed in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange 

ruling at the balance sheet date whilst the profit and loss is translated at an average rate. Exchange differences are dealt with as a 

movement in reserves. Upon disposal of an overseas subsidiary or associated company, the related cumulative exchange difference is 

included in the profit and loss account as part of the gain or loss on disposal. 

Id) 	 Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net assets of the acquired 

subsidiary or associated company at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated 

useful life of five years. Where an indication of impairment exists: the carrying amount of goodwill is assessed and written down 
( J 	

immediately to its recoverable amount. 

Ie) 	 Fixed assets 

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired periods of leases. Depreciation of leasehold buildings and improvements is 

calculated to write off their cost on a straight·line basis over the unexpired periods of the leases or their estimated useful lives to the 

Group, whichever is shorter. The annual rates used for this purpose are 2% and 20% respectively. 

During the year, the Group revised the estimated useful lives of telecommunications equipment. This resulted in a change in 

accounting estimate to the Group and accordingly, the Group has recognised the effect of change in depreciation rate of HKS2,311 ,000 

in the consolidated profit and loss account. Depreciation of other fixed assets is calculated to write off their cost on a straight-line 

basis over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates are as follows: 

Telecommunications equipment 20% 


Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% 


Motor vehicles 30% 


Major costs incurred in restoring telecommunications equipment components to their normal working condition to allow continued use 

of the overall asset are capitalised and depreciated over the remaining useful lives. 

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful lives to the Group. 



1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
(e) 	 Fixed assets (continued) 

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of information are considered to assess whether there is any indication 

that assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an 

impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are recognised in the profit and 

loss account. 

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant 

asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account. 

(f) 	 Investment properties 

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of which construction work and development have been completed, 

and which are held for their investment potential, any rental income being negotiated at arm's length. 

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of greater than 20 years are valued annually by independent professional 

valuers. The valuations are on an open market value basis related to individual properties and separate values are not attributed to 

land and buildings. The valuations are incorporated in the annual accounts. Increases in valuation are credited to the investment 

properties revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation are lirst set off against increases on earlier valuations on a portfolio basis and 

therealter are debited to the profit and loss account. Any subsequent increases are credited to the profit and loss account up to the 

amount previously debited. 

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of 20 years or less are depreciated over the remaining portion of the 

leases. 

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion 01 the revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations 

is released from the investment properties revaluation reserve to the profit and loss account. 

(g) 	 Assets under leases 

(i) 	 Finance leases 

Leases that substantially transfer to the · Group all the risks and rewards 01 ownership of assets are accounted for as finance 

leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the leases at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets or the 

present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges so as 

to achieve a constant rate on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are 

included in liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the profit and loss account over the lease periods. 

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease periods . 
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. Notes to the Accounts 

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
(g) 	 Assets under leases (continued) 

(ii) 	 Operating leases 

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain within the leasing company are accounted 

for as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives received from the leasing company are 

charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease periods. 

(h) 	 Investments 

Investments held for long-term purposes other than those in subsidiaries and associated companies are stated at cost less provision 

for any permanent diminution in value. 

Marketable securities are carried at fair value. At each balance sheet date, the net unreali sed gains or losses arising from the 

changes in fair value of marketable securities are recognised in the profit and loss account. Profits and losses on disposal of 

marketable securities, representing the difference between the net sa les proceeds and the carrying amounts, are recognised in the 

profit and loss account as they ari se. 

(i) 	 Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net reali sable value. Cost is calculated on the first·in, fir st·out basis. Net realisab le 

value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds in the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses. 

(i) 	 Trade receivable s 

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the extent they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts receivable in the balance 

sheet are stated net of such provision. 

(k) 	 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpo ses of the cash flow statement, cash and cash 

equivalents comprise cash on hand, depo sits held at call with banks net of bank overdrafts and trust receipt s loans which have 

original maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition. 

(I) 	 Deferred taxation 

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current taxation rate in respect of timing differences between profit as computed for 

taxation purposes and profit as stated in the accounts to the extent that a liability or an asset is expected to be payable or 

recoverable in the fore seeable future. 

(m) 	 Retirement benefit costs 

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF") for the eligible employees in Hong Kong. The Group's contributions 

to the MPF are expensed as incurred. 
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Notes to the Accounts 

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
(n) 	 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs are charged to 

the profit and loss account when they are incurred. 

(0) 	 Revenue recognition 

(i) 	 Paging subscription fee income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the paging service contracts. Revenue 

received in advance for the provision of paging services for an agreed period of time is deferred and amortised on a straight­

line basis over the contract period. 

(ii) 	 Revenue from the sale of telecommunications products is recognised on the transfer of ownership, which generally coincides 

with the time of shipment. 

(iii) 	 Maintenance and technical consultancy service income from service agreements is recognised on an accrual basis when the 

service is performed. 

(iv) 	 Trunking service income and advertising income are recognised when the services are rendered. 

(v) 	 International communications and Internet related services provided to customers are recognised upon the delivery of services. 

(vi) 	 Commission income is recognised in accordance with the terms of agency agreements which is generally when the agency 

services are rendered. 

(vii) 	 Rental and leasing income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the respective leases. 

(viii) 	 Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principals outstanding and interest rates 

applicable. 

(ix) 	 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. 

(x) 	 Management service fee income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the agreements. 

(xi) 	 Airtime income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the agreements. 
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.. r.:...J '. . '!. ., ~ ... _ . " . . -1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(pi 	 Segment reporting 

In accordance with the Group's internal linancial reporting, the Group has determined that business segments be presented as the 

primary reporting format and geographical segments as the secondary reporting format. 

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of intangible assets, fixed assets, inventories, 

receivables and operating cash. Unallocated assets represent assets not dedicated to a particular segment, consist primarily of cash 

and bank balances, investments in securities, investment properties and other receivables. Segment liabilities comprise operating 

liabilities and corporate borrowings. Unallocated liabilities represent liabilities not dedicated to a particular segment, consist primarily 

of short,term and long-term loans and other payables. Capital expenditure comprises additions to fixed assets. 

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are based on the country in which the customer is located. Total assets and 

capital expenditure are where the assets are located. 
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2 TURNOVER AND REVENUES 
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of paging services, technical consultancy services, and repair and maintenance services 


for telecommunications equipment. international communications services and trunking radio services. It is also engaged in the distributions 


and retail sales of telecommunications equipment and the leasing and trading of telecommunications equipment and products. Revenues 


recognised during the year are as follows: 


Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Turnover 


International communications income 170,378 90,539 


Paging subscription fee and related service income 138,897 200,617 


Technical consultancy service income 131,607 185,077 


Sale of telecommunications products 112,165 112,626 


Leasing income 68,205 26,579 


Commission income 64,666 90,041 


Maintenance service income 19,075 42,789 


Trunking service income 16,322 16,091 


Internet related services income 673 4,074 


721,988 768,433 

Other revenues 


Rental income 8,135 4,563 


Advertising income 3,518 11,586 


Airtime income 2,640 


Interest income 1,834 6,556 


Management service fee income 1,731 


Dividend income from listed investments 73 


Others 729 104 


16,856 24,613 

To tal revenues 738,844 793,046 



-
3 SEGMENT INFORMATION 
The Group's principal activities can be categorised into six business segments: 

Business segments Nature of business activities 	 Places of operation 

1. Telecommunications Network Provision of trunking radio servic es, sa les of Hong Kong! 

Services 	 trunking related equipment, international calling Canada and USA 

services and income from lease line rental 

2. Distributions and Retail Chain Retail sales of telecommunications related Hong Kong! 

Services 	 equipment and products , provision of maintenance People's Republic of China ("PRC") 

and repair services and commission income ,. 

3. Unified Messaging Services Provision of paging services and sales of Hong Kong!PRC 

telecommunications equipment 

4. Mobile Rel ated Services 	 Provision of technical advisory, maintenance and PRC 

Operation 	 accounts management services to 

telecommunications operations 

5. 	 Other Operations Leasing and trading of telecommunication s PRC 

equipment and products 

6. 	 Discontinued Operations· Provision of call center services, Internet related Hong Kong 

services 

On 3 December 200 I, the call center services and Internet related services operations were disposed of to First Active Investments Limited ["'First 

Active·), an associate of the ultimate hotding company, Gold top Holdings Limited, at a cash consideration of HK$15 million. 

Transactions between the business segments and geographical segments have been eliminated. 
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Notes to the Accounts -

3 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 
(a) Primary reporting format - business segments 

Telecom- Distributions Mobile 

munications and Retail Unified Related 

Network Chain Messaging Services Other Discontinued Unallocated 

Services Services Services Operation Operations Operations Items Group 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

2002 

Turnover 254,244 184.712 136,901 131 ,070 9,579 5,482 721,988 

Segmental profit/(Ioss) 

Net finance costs 

Share of prolits belore 

taxation of associated 

companies 

Loss before taxation 

Taxation 

Loss after taxation 

Minority interests 

Loss attributable to the 

shareholders 

4,857 12,550 14,216 . 93,222 (42,395) (8,085) (183,952) (109,5871 

(5,681) 

216 

(115,052) 

(14,1701 

(129,222) 

(1,741 ) 

(130,963) 

Segment assets 

Investments in associated 

companies 

Consolidated total assets 

266,868 182,114 15,847 368,993 57,709 215,243 1,106,774 

2,444 

1,109,218 

Se gment liabilitie s 82,007 23,492 37,083 66,894 15,540 139,211 364,227 

Capital expenditure 

Depreciation 

Amortisation 

Impairment loss on fixed assets 

Other non-cash 

expenses!(income), net 

38,Jl8 

4,285 

26,092 

(44) 

1,843 

4,735 

(1,0 36) 

1.180 

7,173 

4,616 

(1,254) 

1,029 

1,913 

8,843 

78 

47,315 

678 

26 

1,405 

6,003 

12,037 

209 

98,899 

15,331 

48,199 

31,626 

9,052 

176,922 

13,675 
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3 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 
(a) Primary reporting format - business segments (continued) 

Telecom- Distributions Mobile 

munications and Retail Unified Related 

Network Chain Messaging Services Other Discontinued Unallocated 

Services Services Services Operation Operations Operations Items Group 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

2001 

Turnover 122,153 193,495 190,383 184,261 37,511 40,630 768,433 

Segmental profiV(loss) (16,190) 1,327 ([04,930) 139,657 (82,991) (59,762) (96,985) (219,874) 
Net finance costs (8,820) 

Share of profits before 

taxation of associated 

companies 6,778 

Loss before taxation (221,916) 
Taxation ([8,620) 

Loss after taxation (240,536) 
Minority interests 28,333 

Loss attributable to the 

shareholders (212,203) 

Segment assets 154,253 135,106 37,075 408,121 174,653 59,146 408,374 1,376,728 
Investments in associated 

companies 2,228 

Consolidated total assets 1,378,956 

Segment liabilities 125,267 54,332 47,376 68,394 28,471 12,651 166,511 503,002 

Capital expenditure 6,546 5,576 6,458 4,589 857 19,181 26,987 70,194 
Depreciation 2,177 6,163 8,165 1,361 15,162 2,090 10,698 45,816 
Amortisation 536 5,337 8,843 598 700 16,014 
Impairment loss on fixed 

assets/ write off of goodwill 26,381 2,599 103,390 93,144 10,720 236,234 
Other non-cash expenses, net 9,835 4,945 17,398 385 1,120 2,910 36,593 



3 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 
(b) Secondary reporting format - geographical segments 

Turnover 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Segmental profit/(Ioss) 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Total assets 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Capital expenditure 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

PRC 

Hong Kong 

Canada and USA 

220,725 

474,013 

27,250 

372,824 

367,365 

28,244 

96,858 

(24,784) 

2,291 

97,701 

(224,784) 

4,194 

691,525 

392,901 

24,792 

665,434 

687,110 

26,412 

2,090 

29,273 

16,836 

9,259 

60,245 

690 

721,988 768,433 74,365 (122,889) 1,109,218 1,378,956 48,199 70,194 

Unallocated items (183,952) (96,985) 

721,988 768,433 (109,587) (219,874) 1,109,218 1,378,956 48,199 70,194 



4 OPERATING LOSS 
Operating loss is stated after crediting and charging the following: 

Crediting 

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets 


Gain on dilution of interests in subsidiaries 


Charging 

Auditors' remuneration 


Staff costs (excluding directors' emoluments) 


Depreciation of fixed assets 


- owned assets 

- owned assets (telecommunications equipment) leased out 

under operating leases 

- assets under finance leases 

Loss on disposal of marketable securities 

Operating lease charges for land and buildings 

Operating lease charges for telecommunications equipment 

Amortisation of goodwill (included in administrative 

expenses) 

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries/associated companies 

Cost of inventories sold 

Impairment loss on fixed assets 

Deficit on revaluation of investment properties 

Diminution in value of marketable securities 

Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

33,999 (651) 

2,666 

1,500 1,500 

148,704 192,297 

26,054 28,242 

5,102 15,162 

470 2,412 

63,753 72,875 

88,663 43,354 

9,052 16,014 

26,328 2,378 

94,118 132,379 

176,922 195,266 

13,842 2,910 

1,954 1,560 

313 



4 OPERATING LOSS (continued} 
The future minimum lease incomes receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 

Within one year 

Between two and five years 

More than five years 

"5 FINANCE COSTS 

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 

- wholly repayable within fiv e years 

- not wholly repayable within five years 

Interest on other loan s wholly repayable within five years 

Interest element of finance leases 

2002 

HKS'OOO 

6,276 

585 

6,861 

2002 

HKS'OOO 

2,449 

4,231 

641 

194 

Group 

2001 

HKS'OOO 

17,580 

52,740 

52,363 

122,683 

Group 

2001 

HKS'OOO 

6,289 

8,189 

456 

442 

7,515 15,376 
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(a) 	 The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit and loss account represents: 

Group 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Hong Kong profits tax 

- underprovision in 'previous years 442 50 

PRe taxation 

- current year 13,728 18,570 

14,170 18,620 

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at a rate of 16% (2001: 16%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. The provision for 

Hong Kong profits tax has been reduced by the availability of tax losses to set oH against assessable profit for the year and the tax 

savings from the utilisation of such losses amounted to HK$5,502,000 for the year ended 31 March 2002 (2001: HK$5,772,000). 

PRe taxation represents income tax payable by the subsidiaries operating in the PRe at the applicable rates ranging from 15 per cent 

to 33 per cent. 

(b) 	 The amount of taxation in the consolidated balance sheet represents: 

Group 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Hong Kong profits tax recoverable (91) 

PRe income tax payable 7,360 16,198 

7,360 16,107 

(c) 	 The aggregate potential deferred tax asset of HK$87,551,000 (2001: HK$68,643,000) relating to tax losses available to be carried 

forward and other timing differences related to accelerated depreciation allowance as at 31 March 2002 has not been recognised as 

the crystallisation of the asset in the foreseeable future is uncertain, 



7 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 
The loss attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the accounts of the Company to the extent of HKS277,105,OOO (2001: HKS2,482,OOO). 

8 	 DIVIDENDS 
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2002 (2001: Nil). 

9 	 LOSS PER SHARE 
Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Loss attributable to shareholders 	 (130,963) (212,203) 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 525,475,573 440,027,564 

Adjustments for share options and warrants 93,531,570 59,060,944 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted loss per share 	 619,007,143 499,088,508 

Basic loss per share 	 (24.92) HK cents (48.22) HK cents 

Diluted loss per share (note (b)) 	 N/A N/A 

(a) 	 Basic loss per share is calculated based on weighted average .number of issued ordinary shares and the related income amount. For 

the diluted loss per share, the weighted average number of issued ordinary shares is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive 

potential ordinary shares. The number of incremental shares from assumed exercise of share options and warrants has been 

determined using the treasury stock method. 

(b) 	 Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 March 2002 and 2001 has not been presented as the conversion of potential ordinary 

shares to ordinary shares would have anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share. 



10 	RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 
The Group's contributions to the MPF are at 5% of employees basic salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,000 per employee per month. The 

MPF contributions are fully and immediately vested in the employees as accrued benefits once they are paid. 

The Group has contributed HK$3,992,000 to the MPF for the year ended 31 March 2002 (2001: HK$1, 724 ,000). 

The assets of MPF are held separa tely from those of the Group in independent administered funds . 

11 	 DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS 
(a) 	 Directors' emoluments 


The aggregate amounts of the emoluments payable to directors of the Company during the year are as follows: 


2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Fees 1,535 2,090 

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other allowances 

and benefits in kind 13,767 12,373 

Retirement benefit costs 48 335 

15,350 14,798 

Directors' fee s disc losed above include HK$351 ,666 (2001: HK$3 11 ,000) paid to the independent non-executive directors. 

No director waived any emoluments during the year (2001: Nil). During the year, no amounts have been pa id by the Group to the 

directors as an inducement to join the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2001: Nil). 



11 	 DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (continued) 
(a) 	 Directors' emoluments (continued) 


The emoluments of the directors fell within the following bands: 


Number of directors 

2002 2001 

Emolument bands 

HK$Nil - HK$I,OOO,OOO 6 10 

HK$I,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2 

HKS2,000 ,001 - HKS2,500,000 

HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 

HKS5,000,001 - HK$5,500,000 

HKS6,500,001 - HKS7,000,000 

10 14 

(b) 	 Five highest paid individuals 

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include three (2001: three) directors whose 

emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2001: two) individuals 

during the year are as follows: 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HKS'OOO 

Basic salaries, housing allowances, share options, 

other allowances and benefits in kind 5,004 3,2B3 

Bonuses 31 376 

Retirement benefit costs 23 3 

5,058 3,662 



------------------
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11 DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (continuedI' 
(b) 	 Five highest paid individuals (continued) 


The emoluments fell within the following bands:. 


Number of individuals 

Emolument bands 2002 2001 

HK$I,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2 

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 

HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 

(c) 	 The share options held by the directors (including non-executive directors of the Company) under the China Motion Employees' Share 

Option Scheme are set out in the report of the directors on pages 26 to 29. 

12 GOODWILL 
Group 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Cost 

At 1 April 47,940 105,964 

Additions 10,456 

Disposals (68,480) 

At 31 March 	 47,940 47,940 

Accumulated amortisation 

At 1 April 28,590 37,639 

Amortisation charge 9,052 16,014 

Disposals (25,063) 

At 31 March 	 37,642 28,590 

Net book value 	 10,298 19,350 



-----------------------------------------------------

13 FIXED ASSETS - GROUP 
Furniture, 

Leasehold fixtures Telecom-

Investment land and and office munications Leasehold Motor 

properties buildings equipment equipment Improvements vehicles Total 

HK $'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Cost or valuation 

At 1 April 2001 90,240 218, 570 57,516 437,191 55,259 9,742 868,518 

Additions 6,183 37,429 4,466 121 48,199 

Disposal of subsidiaries (8,698) (10,908) (1,062) (419) (21,087) 

Transfers 9,882 (23,423) (13,541 ) 

Revaluation (note (d)) (13,842 ) (13, 842) 

Disposals/write-off (10,642) (72,771) (6 ,041) (1,194) (90,64 8) 

At 31 March 2002 86,280 195,147 44,359 390,941 52,622 8,250 777,599 

Accumulated depreciation 

and impairment 

At 1 April 2001 13,349 27,744 312,338 25,626 7,650 386,70 7 

Charge for the year 3,255 7,361 10,765 9,337 908 31,626 

Impairment charge 

(note (b) & (e)) 95,132 944 76,763 4,083 176,922 

Disposal of subsidiaries (2,236) (3,9851 (1,014) (91) (7,326) 

Transfers (13,54 1) (13,541) 

Dispo sals/wri te-off (8,0801 (47 ,590) (4,481 ) (870) (61,021) 

At 31 March 2002 98,195 25,733 . 348,291 33,551 7,597 513,367 

Net book value or valuation 

At 31 March 2002 86,280 96,952 18,626 42,650 19,071 653 264,232 

At 31 March 2001 90,240 205,221 29,772 124,853 29,633 2,092 481,811 



13 	FIXED ASSETS - GROUP (continued) 
(a) 	 As at 31 March 2002, the net book value of fixed assets pledged as security for banking facilities of the Group amounted to approximately 

HK$ 183,232,000 (2001: HK$205,221,000). 

(b) 	 In light of the severe competition in the telecommunications market in Hong Kong and the rapid change of technology, the Group has reviewed the 

carrying value of all telecommunications equipment and other fixed assets based on the recoverable value of these assets and an impairment charge 

of HK$81 ,790,000 (200 I: HK$ 195,266,000) has been made in current year. 

(c) 	 In view of the change in the property market, the Group has made an impairment charge of HK$95,132,000 (2001: Nil) on the leasehold land and 

buildings in current year. 

(d) 	 The investment properties are valued at open market value by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent professional valuers, as at 31 March 

2002. The revaluation deficit is charged to the prolit and loss account. 
t..:: ' 

'. .' 

The investment properties of the Group are pledged as security for banking facilities granted to the Group. 

(e) 	 The analysis of the net book value of the Group's leasehold land and buildings and valuation of the Group's investment properties as at 31 March 

2002 is as follows: 

Group 

Leasehold land 

and buildings Investment properties 

in Hong Kong Hong Kong PRe Total 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Period unexpired 

Leases between 10 to 50 years 

At net book value 80,728 

At valuation 20,100 5,000 25,100 

Leases not less than 50 years 

At net book value 16,224 

At valuation 61,180 61,180 

96,952 81,280 5,000 86,280 
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13 	FIXED ASSETS - GROUP (continued) 
(f) 	 As at 31 March 2002, the net book value of fixed assets held under finance leases are as follows: 

Telecommunications equipment 


Motor vehicles 


14 INVESTMENTS IN A SUBSIDIARY 

Unlisted investment, at cost (note (a)) 

Amount due from a subsidiary (note (b)) 

Provision for amount due from a subsidiary 

Group 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HKS'OOO 

6,462 

424 879 

424 7,341 

Company 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HKS'OOO 

113,115 113,115 

784,437 296,718 

(275,000) 

622,552 409,833 

(a) 	 Particulars of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the accounts. 

(b) 	 The amount due from a wholly·owned subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment but repayment is not 

expected to be within twelve months from the balance sheet date. 
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15 	 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 
Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HK$'OOO 

Share of net assets 	 2,444 2.228 

Particulars of principal associated companies are set out in note 37 to the accounts. 

16 	OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 
Group 

2002 2001 
,,' -, ~'- .. HKS'OOO HK$'OOO - . ~! !: 
c~;. . ' 

Unlisted shares, at cost less amounts written off 14,178 14,178 

Club debentures 4,762 4,765 

Others, unlisted (note (a)) 327,892 247,733 

346,832 266,676 

(a) 	 This includes an amount of HK$24 7,733,000 invested by the Group in a telecommunications project in Guangdong province in the 

PRC. This investment has been undertaken on behalf of the Group by a related party, China Motion Netcom Services Co. Ltd (formerly 

known as China Motion Mobile Telecom Services Co, Ltd) ("CM Netcom"). CM Netcom is a minority shareholder of a subsidiary. The 

amount is repayable by CM Netcom to a subsidiary of the Company before or upon expiry of a service agreement between that 

subsidiary and CM Netcom in March 2004, HK$40 million has been repaid subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2002 on II July 

2002. 

During the year, the Group provided HK$80, 159,000 as capital expenditure funding to CM Netcom for developing CM Netcom's VolP 

long distance call services business. The capital expenditure funding is repayable on demand and the directors expect that the funding 

will be fully repaid by CM Netcom within 5 years after the date of entering the VolP service agreement on 16 October 2001. In the 

opinion of the directors, no demand for repayment is expected within twelve months from the balance sheet date. 
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17 INVENTORIES 
Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Fini shed goods 8,248 7,063 

As at 31 March 2002, the carrying amount of inventories that are carried at net rea li sable value amounted to HKS7,972,OOO (2001: 

HKS6,193,OOO). 

18 RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 
Group Company 

2002 2001 2002 2001 

Note HKS'OOO HKS'OOO HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Trade 

Trade receivables, net of provision 18(a), 32(b) 316,419 273,436 

Non-trade 

Due from: 

Subsidiaries 2,903 586,390 

Assoc iated companies 18(b) 16,503 7,280 

Related companies 181c) 1,717 366 

An investee company 2,581 

Other receivables and prepayments 32(c) 23,259 106,447 4 

357,898 390,110 2,903 586,394 



18 	RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) 
(a) 	 The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 March 2002 is as follows: 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

o - 30 days 36,600 49,348 

31 - 60 days 26,177 35,269 

61 - 90 days 15,722 29,390 

Over 90 days 237,920 159,429 

Total 	 316,419 273,436 

The Group has a defined credit policy. The general credit term is 30-60 days. The trade debtors with ageing over 61 days comprise 

amounts due from China Motion Telecom Holdings Limited ("CMTH") and its subsidiaries, all are related parties of the Group, totalling 

HKS243,44I,OOO (2001: HKSI76.398,OOO). The information in respect of the total outstanding trade receivables due from such 

related parties as at year end has been disclosed in note 32(b). 

(b) 	 As at 31 March 2002, the amounts due from associated companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of 

repayment. 

(c) 	 As at 31 March 2002, the amounts due from related companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

19 'MARKETABLE SECURITIES1 
Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Equity securities, listed in Hong Kong at market value 	 1,107 2,940 



20 	BANK AND CASH BALANCES - GROUP 
(a) 	 Included in bank and cash balances of the Group is HK$70,511,000 (2001: HK$61,217,000) which represents bank balances 

denominated in Renminbi placed with banks in the PRe. Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency. 

(b) 	 Included in bank and cash balances of the Group are fixed deposits with financial institutions amounting to HK$35,327,000 (2001: 

HK$125,811,0001. The weighted average effective interest rate on fixed deposits for the year ended 31 March 2002 was 2% (2001: 

4.37%1. 

21 	 TRADE AND OTHER PAVABLES 
Group Company 

2002 2001 2002 2001 

Note HKS'OOO HK$'OOO HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Trade 

Bills payable 	 1,999 341 

Trade payables 	 21(a) 59,943 65,022 

Advance subscription fees received 	 14,969 25,389 

Non-trade 

Due to: 

Subsidiaries 113,001 

Associated companies 2!(b) 7,859 65,563 

An investee company 5,272 

Directors 97 555 

Other payables and accrued liabilities 32(d) 90,161 127,564 962 1,805 

180,300 284,434 962 114,806 



------------------
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21 	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 
(a) 	 Trade payables 


The ageing analysis of trade payables as at 31 March 2002 is as follows: 


2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

o - 30 days 24,795 14,775 

31 - 60 days 8,506 5,453 

61 - 90 days 6,431 512 

Over 90 days 20,211 44,282 

Total 	 59,943 65,022 

(b) 	 As at 31 March 2002, amounts due to associated companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The 

balance mainly represent s rental fee on telecommunications equipment payable to an associated company. 

22 	 BORROWINGS~ 
Group 

2002 2001 

Note HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Non·current 

Bank loans - secured 23 96,476 116,948 

Obligations under finance leases 24 138 391 

96,614 117,339 

Current 

T rust receipt loans - secured 2,893 

Bank loans - secured 23 30,335 22,604 

Obligations under finance leases 24 208 1,773 

30,543 27,270 

Total borrowings 	 127,157 144,609 



23 BANK LOANS ­ SECURED 
Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Secured bank loans are repayable: 

- within one year (included in current liabilities) 30,335 22,604 

- between one and two years 19,578 19,022 

- between two and five years 34,746 44,2 55 

- over five years 42,152 53,671 

96,476 116,948 

126,811 139,552 

The bank loans are secured by the Group's investment properties, leasehold land and buildings and certain bank deposits, and are 

repayable by monthly instalment. The maturity date for the la st instalment is August 2013. The weighted average eHective interest rate for 

the year ended 31 March 2002 was 5.08% per annum (2001: 8. 79% per annum) and the interest rate exposure of the bank loans of the 

Group was as follows: 

Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

At floating rates 

- Hong Kong dollar denominated loans 123,249 135,545 

- US dollar denominated loans 3,562 4,007 

126,811 139,552 



24 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 
As at 31 March 2002, the Group's finance lease liabilities were repayable as follows: 

Within one year 


In the second year 


In the third to the fifth year 


Future finance charges on finance leases 


Present value of finance lea se liabilities 


The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: 


Within one year (included in current liabilities) 

In the second year 

In the third to the fifth year 

2002 

HKS'OOO 

257 

172 

Group 

2001 

HKS'OOO 

1,975 

314 

172 

429 2,461 

(83) (297) 

346 2,164 

2002 

HKS'OOO 

208 

138 

Group 

2001 

HKS'OOO 

1,773 

253 

138 

138 391 

346 2,164 



25 SHARE CAPITAL 
Company 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Authorised: 

1,040,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.75 each 780,000 780,000 

2002 

Number Issued and 

of shares fully paid 

HK$'OOO 

2001 

Number 

of shares 

Issued and 

fully paid 

HK$'OOO 

Ordinary shares of HK$0.75 each 

At 1 April 

Issue of shares 

- placement 

- rights issue 

- share option scheme (note (a)) 

525,475,573 394,107 375,330,459 

45,000,000 

105,095,114 

50,000 

281,498 

33,750 

78,821 

38 

At 31 March 525,475,573 394,107 525,475,573 394,107 



-25 	 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 
(a) 	 Share option scheme 

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 18 March 1998 and subsequently modified pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 

19 February 2000 and 2 February 2001, a share option scheme known as "China Motion Employee s' Share Option Scheme" (the 

"Scheme") was adopted. A committee comprising directors of the Company who were duly appointed by the board of directors is 

authorised to grant options to eligible employees including executive directors of the Company to subscribe for shares not exceeding 

10% of the issued share capital of the Company. 

The movements of share options under the Scheme during the year were as follows: 

Balance Options Options Options Balance 

outstanding granted exercised lapsed outstanding 

Exercise as at 1 during during during as at 31 

Date of grant price April 2001 the year the year the year March 2002 

l 	 HK$.,• . 
~ 

29 June 1998 0.751 587,059 (102,993) 484,066 

19 August 1999 2.00 1,879,620 (406,822) 1,4 72, 798 

25 February 2000 3.19 1,091,725 1,091,725 

17 October 2000 1.22 4,127,441 (599,936) 3,527,505 

20 March 200 I 0.75 33,600,000 (7,400,000) 26,200,000 

28 January 2002 0.75 1,850,000 1,850,000 

41,285,845 1,850,000 	 (8,509,751) 34,626,094 

The aforesaid share options are exercisable at any time after the date of grant and before the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. 

Exerci se in full of all outstanding share options would result in the issue of an additional 34,626,094 ordinary shares with estimated 

proceeds of HKS32,133,000. 

(b) 	 Warrants 

On I April 2000, 55,804,270 units of unli sted warrants were issued to certain third parties as part of the consideration for the 

acquisition of additional interests in CM Mobile Telecom Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned sub sidiary of the Company. The warrants 

confer the holders the right to subscribe for 55,804,270 new fully paid shares in the Company at an initial subscription price of 

HKS2.184 per share at any time from I April 2000 and subsequently adjusted to HKS2.l2 per share on 23 January 2001 up to and 

including 31 March 2004. Exercise in full of all outstanding warrants would re sult in the issue of an additional 55,804 ,270 shares with 

estimated proceeds of HKSI18,305,000. No warrants were exercised during the year. 



26 NON·DISTRIBUTABLE CAPITAL RESERVES 

Reserves 

Share on 

premium consolidation 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

2002 

Capital 

Exchange redemption 

reserve reserve 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Enterprise 

expansion 

reserve 

HK$'OOO 

Group 

Share 

Total prenium 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Reserves 

on 

consolidation 

HK$'OOO 

2001 

Capital 

Ex change redemption 

re serve reserve 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Enterprise 

expansion 

reserve 

HK$'OOO 

Tot~ 

HK$'OOO 

All April 

Transler Irom 

retainedprofits 

Issue of shares, 

net of expenses 

Exchange diHerences 

ari~ng Irom investmenls 

in PRC sub~diaries 

455,573 4,900 1,697 450 54,439 

13,892 

517,059 

13,892 

264,726 

190,847 

4,900 1,343 

354 

450 40,748 

13,691 

312,167 

13,691 

190,847 

35 4 

AI31 March 455,573 4,900 1,697 450 68,331 530,951 455,573 4,900 1,697 450 54,439 517,059 

Share 

premium 

HKS'OOO 

2002 

Capital 

redemption 

reserve 

HKS'OOO 

Company 

Share 

Total premium 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

2001 

Capitaf 

redemption 

reserve 

HKS'OOO 

Total 

HKS'OOO 

At 1 April 

Issue of shares, net of expenses 

455,573 450 456,023 264,726 

190,847 

450 265,176 

190,847 

At 31 March 455,573 450 456,023 455,573 450 456,023 

Enterprise expansion reserve represents a PRC statutory reserve set up by the operating subsidiaries in the PRC. Upon approval of the 

relevant PRC authorities, the enterprise expansion reserve may be used for increasing the registered capital. 
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27 CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS 
Company 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HK S'OOO 

Brought forward and carried forward 52,854 52,854 

The contributed surplu s of the Company, which arose from a corporate reorganisation in March 1995 repre sents the difference between the 

nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange for the issued ordinary shares of China Motion Holdings Limited and the value of 

net assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired as at 31 March 1995. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda las amended), a 

company may not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing 

that Ii) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they bec ome due; Iii) the realisable value of the 

company's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its is sued share capital and share premium account. On 6 

September 1996, HKS9,344,832 was transferred to share capital upon a special bonus issue. At Group level , the contributed surplus is 

recl as sified into its components of reserves of the underlying subsidiaries. 
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28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
(a) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash outflow from operating activities: 

2002 2001 

Note HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Loss before taxation (115,052) (221,916) 

Depreciation of owned fixed assets 31,156 43,404 

Depreciation of fixed assets held under finance leases 470 2,412 

Impairment loss on fixed assets 176,922 195,266 

Amortisation of goodwill 9,052 16,014 

Write-off of goodwill 40,968 

Deficit on revaluation of investment properties 13,842 2,910 

Share of profits before taxation of associated companies (216) (6,778) 

Net (gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets (33,999) 651 

Gain on dilution of interests in subsidiaries (2,666) 

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 28 (c) 26,328 

Loss on disposal of other investment 150 

Loss on disposal of associated companies 2,378 

Interest paid 7,321 14,934 

Interest element of finance leases 194 442 

Interest received (1,834) (6,556) 

Dividend received from listed investments (731 

Changes in working capital 

(lncrease)/decrease in inventories (1,185) 30,085 

Increase in trade receivables, other receivables 

including amounts due from associated companies, 

related companies, an investee company, diminution in 

value and loss on disposal of marketable securities (60,004) (127,641) 

Decrease in trade payables, other payables and 

accrued liabilities, bills payable, advance subscription fees 

received including amounts due to associated companies (103,283) (19,149) 

Cash outflow from operating activities (50,288) (35,165) 
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28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued) 
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year 

Share capital 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

Minority interests 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

loans and obligations 

under finance leases 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

,, ' 

At 1 April 

Dilution of interest 

in subsidiaries 

Issue of new shares 

Share of profits/(Iosses) 

by minority shareholders 

Cash outflow from financing 

Capital contribution from 

minority shareholders 

Disposal of subsidiaries (28(c)) 

Dividends paid to 

minority shareholders 

(note 28(d)(ii)) 

Acquisition of subsidiaries 

394,107 281,498 

112,609 

57,506 

1,741 

773 

727 

(11,683) 

72,447 

3,914 

(28,333) 

9,360 

118 

141,716 

(14,559) 

174,027 

(32,311 ) 

At 31 March 394,107 394,107 49,064 57,506 127,157 141.716 
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28 	 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continuedl 
(c) 	 Disposal of subsidiaries 

2002 

HKS'OOO 

Net assets disposed of: 

Fixed assets 13,761 

Trade and other receivables 26,630 

Cash and bank balances 1,061 

Other payables and accruals (851) 

Minority interests 727 

41,328 

Loss on disposal (26,328) 

Satisfied by cash 	 15,000 

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 	 13,939 

(d) 	 Major non-cash transactions 

(il 	 Pursuant to the VolP Services Agreement entered into between Shenzhen Motion Mobile Telecom Services Co, Ltd. ("SMMT'), a 

90% owned subsidiary of the Group, and CM Netcom, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CMTH, SMMT ha s agreed to provide CAPEX 

funding to CM Netcom for developing CM Netcom's VolP long distance call services business , CAPEX funding provided to CM 

Netcom by the Group during the year amounted to HK$80, 159,000. Within all, HK$24,299,000 was provided to CM Netcom by 

cash and the remaining balance of HK$55,860,000 was provided through current account with CMTH. 

(ii) 	 During the year , SMMT had declared dividend amounted to HK$116,830,000. Among all, HK$11,683,000 was paid to CMTH, a 

minority shareholder of SMMT, The amount was settled through a current account with CMTH. 



-29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

2002 

HK$'OOO 

Group 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Bank and cash balances 

T rust receipt loans 

111,804 202,401 

(2,893) 

111,804 199,508 

,. 
~.~r 

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
As at 31 March 2002, the Group and the Company had contingent liabilities not provided for in the accounts as follows: 

Group Company 

2002 2001 2002 

HKS'OOO HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

2001 

HK$'OOO 

Guarantees in respect of banking facilitie s 

of sub sid iaries 

Guarantees to suppliers in re spec t of purchase 

of telecommunications equipment 

Guarantees given to third parties against 

non-performance of contractual 

obligations by subsidiaries 35,474 

20,108 

28,700 

275,131 

31,474 

275,131 

20.108 

25,700 



31 COMMITMENTS 
As at 31 March 2002, the Group had the following commitments : 

(a) Operating lease commitments 

(i) The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 

Group 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

In 	respect of land and buildings, including 

transmission sites: 

Within one year 23,014 38,987 

Between two and five years 17,237 13,326 

More than five years 1,635 2,930 

41,886 55,243 

In respect of leased lines: 

Within one year 27,110 49,997 

Between two and five years 10,419 50,749 

37,529 100,746 

(bl Capital commitments for purchase of fixed assets 

Group 

2002 2001 

HK$'OOO HK$'OOO 

Contracted but not provided for 17,354 5,691 


Authorised but not contracted for 36,955 69,005 


54,309 74,696 
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
(a) In addition to that disclosed in note 16(a), the Group had the following transactions with related parties, including minority shareholders 

of subsidiaries which were carried out in the normal course of business and on terms arranged by or between the parties during the 

year: 

2002 

HKS'OOO 

Group 

2001 

HKS'OOO 

Income/(expensesl 

Rental payable to a related party (note (i)) (3161 (1,546) 

Significant transactions with associated companies 

Wanbao Telecom (H.K.) Company, Limited 

Purchase of ISP business 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Network service fee 

Goodfine Holdings Limited 

Network service fee 

(7,183) 

(2,817) 

(622) 

(2,220) 

Significant transactions with minority shareholders of subsidiaries 

CMTH 

Sale of microwave telecommunications equipment 

Net sales of pagers and telecommunications equipment 

Maintenance service income 

Leasing income 

Airtime income 

Commission income 

Recharge of paging service expenses, operator's cost and dataline rental 

Dataline expenses 

Shenzhen China Motion Telecom United Company ("SCMTU") 

Sales of telecommunications equipment 

61,495 

619 

14,332 

9,342 

2,640 

(6,9021 

(1,10 11 

5,073 

11,239 

35,307 

26,579 

2,640 

727 

(33,714) 

(1,121) 

5,073 
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32 	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

CM Netcom 

Provision of technical consultancy and maintenance services 

First Active 


Disposal of subsidiaries 


Note: 

Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

131,070 184,261 

15,000 

(i) 	 This represents rentat paid to Liking Industrial Limited, a company beneficially owned by a director of the Company in respect of a property 

utilised by the aforesaid director. 

(b) 	 As at 31 March 2002, outstanding trade receivables due from minority shareholders of subsidiaries are as follows: 

Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

CMTH 32,401 50,063 

CM Netcom 166,721 100,933 

SCMTU 68,756 65,469 

267,878 216,465 



-
32 RELATEO PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuedf 

(c) As at 31 March 2002, outstanding non-trade receivables due from minority shareholders of subsidiaries are as follows: 

Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

CMTH 21,540 

SCMTU 12,692 

China Motion Internet Services Limited 3,768 

Sheen Line Investments Limited 9,750 

Red Flag Finance Limited 5,850 

' .. Brilliant Eagle Group Limited 1,950-" 
Portishead Holdings Limited 780 

Double Happy Limited 585 

Money Concept Investment Limited 3,315 

60,230 

(d) As at 31 March 2002, outstanding non-trade payables included payables to minority shareholders of subsidiaries are as follows: 

Group 

2002 2001 

HKS'OOO HKS'OOO 

CMTH 2,921 

Guangdong Mobile Communication Company Limited 827 827 

SCMTU 1,160 

CM Netcom 13,185 

827 18,093 

The Company is a subsidiary of Goldtop Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is also regarded by 

the directors as being the ultimate holding company. 
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34 	 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 

On 28 May 2002, a sale and purchase agreement (the "Agreement") was entered into between China Motion Telecom (HK) Limited, a wholly, 


owned subsidiary of the Group, and Telecom Digital Data Limited (the "Purchaser"). Under which, the Group would dispose of its business of 


operating paging networks and providing paging services in Hong Kong presently carried on by the Group and, where the context permits, 


shall include the Business Assets (the "Business") to the Purchaser, 


Under the term of the Agreement, the Business shall include the licences, the equipment and other benefits of the subscriber contracts, 


sites contracts and the Agreement. 


The consideration for the disposal of the Business would be equal to the total gross revenues (and pro rata where necessary) of the 


Bu siness that are actually received by the Purchaser from the subscribers for the paging services provided to the subscribers for the 


months of June, Augu st and October 2002. 


35 	 APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS 

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on 22 July 2002. 


36 	PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 

The principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2002 are as follows: 


Country/ 


place of Particulars of Percentage 


establishmenV issued share capitalj of effective 


Name operation registered capital equity held' Principal activities 


Best Class International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% Property holding 


Limited of HK$ 1.00 each 


China Motion Data System Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% Property holding 


Limited of HK$ 1.00 each 


China Motion Holdings British Virgin 100 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding 


Limited Islands of US$1.00 each 


ChinaMotion NetCom Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% Provision of long distance 


(Asia) Limited of HK$l.OO each call services 




36 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 

Name 

ChinaMotion NetCom 

(Canada) Ltd. 

China Motion Properties 

Limited 

China Motion Telecom 

(HK) Limited 

China Motion United 

Telecom Limited 

CM Concept Holdings 

(China) Limited 

CM Concept (HK) Limited 

CM Tel (HK) Limited 

CM Tel (USA) LLC 

Eagle Heights Limited 

Country/ 

place of 

establishmentj 

operation 

Canada 

Hong Kong 

Hong Kong 

Hong Kong 

Hong Kong 

Hong Kong 

Hong Kong 

United States 

British Virgin 

Islands 

Particulars of 

issued share capital! 

registered capital 

1 ordinary share 

of CSI.OO each 

2 ordinary shares 

of HKSI.OO each 

1 million ordinary shares 

of HKS 1.00 each 

66.8 million ordinary shares 

of HKSI.OO each 

100 ordinary shares 

of HKSI.OO each and 

500 non-voting deferred shares 

of HKSIO,OOO.OO each 

2 ordinary shares 

of HKSI.OO each 

2 ordinary shares 

of HKSI.OO each 

US$IO,OOO 

1 ordinary share 

of US$1.00 each 

Percentage 

of effective 

equity held' Principal activities 

100% Provision of long distance 

call services 

100% Property holding 

100% Trading of pagers and 

the provision of paging 

services 

70% Investment holding and 

provision of roaming 

trunked radio services 

100% Investment holding and 

trading of 

telecommunication 

products and equipment 

100% Retail business 

100% Provision of long distance 

call services 

100% Provision of long distance 

call services 

100% Provision of long distance 

call services 



36 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 
Country/ 

place of 

establishment! 

Name operation 

Particulars of 

issued share capital! 

registered capital 

Percentage 

of effective 

equity held' Principal activities 

Express Lane Investment 

Limited 

Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 

of HK$l.OO each 

100% Property holding 

Guangzhou Motion 

Telecom Service Co., Ltd. 

People's Republic 

of China 

HK$2,660,000 70% Maintenance services 

and provision 

of telecom related 

services 

Jackie Industries Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 

of HK$I.00 each 

100% Property holding 

Prime Target 

International Limited 

British Virgin 

Islands 

I ordinary share 

of US$I.00 each 

100% Provision of roaming 

paging services 

Sheen Metro Investment 

Limited 

Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 

of HK$I.OO each 

100% Property holding 

Sheen Sino Investment 

Limited 

Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 

of HK$l.OO each 

100% Property holding 

Shenzhen Motion Mobile 

Telecom Services 

Co., Ltd. 

People's Republic 

of China 

US$12,000,000 90% Provision of GSM·related 

services to telecom 

operators in the PRC 

Shenzhen Motion Telecom 

Service Co., Ltd. 

People's Republic 

of China 

RMB25,000,000 70% Leasing and 

maintenance for wireless 

telecommunication 

equipment and networks 

Shenzhen Motion Trunked 

Radio Co ., Ltd. 

People's Republic 

of China 

Paid·up captial 

US$5,000,OOO 

Registered capital 

US$9,000,000 

@ 

49% Provision of 

telecommunication 

equipment leasing 
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Country/ 

place of Particulars of Percentage 

establishment! issued share capital! of effective 

Name operation registered capital equity held· Principal activities 

Townlink Limited Hong Kong 2 million ordinary shares 70% Provision of 

of HK$l.OO each telecommunication 

services and the 

sale of mobile 

transceivers and 

related accessories 

I.­

~;:> 
,:.; ",; 

World Sheen Properties 

Limited 

Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 

HK$l.OO each 

100% Property holding 

All interests are held indirectly by the Company except for China Motion Holdings Limited which is directly owned by the Company , 

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year 

or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group, To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, 

result in particulars of excessive length, 



37 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATED COMPANIES ' 
The principal associated companies as at 31 March 2002 are as follows: 

Country/ Percentage of 

place of Particulars of effective 

establishment! Issued equity interest 

Name operation shares held indirectly held Principal activities 

CM Mobile Investment British Virgin Ordinary shares 38% Investment 

Limited Islands US$I.OO each holding 

Thinker Communications Hong Kong Ordinary shares 48% Agency services 

Technology (HK) HK$I.OO each 

Co., Limited 

T-Tel Communications Hong Kong Ordinary shares 48% Agency services 

Technology (HK) HK$1.00 each 

Co., Limited 

Wanbao Telecom Hong Kong Ordinary shares 48% 	 Trading of 

Investment Limited HK$ 1.00 each 	 telecommunication 

equipment and 

provision of paging 

network services 

The above table includes the associated companies of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the 

year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other associated companies would, in the opinion of 

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. 
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i . . Notice of Annual General Meeting 	 . ­ -NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of China Motion Telecom International Limited will be held at 

Fung Shui Room, 6/F., The Marco Polo HongKong Hotel, Harbour City, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Friday, 6 September 2002 at 

9:30 a.m. for the following purposes: 


As Ordinary Business 


(Resolution 	I) I. To receive and adopt the Directors' Report and the Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2002, together with 

the Auditors' Report thereon. 

2. To re·elect the following Directors retiring under Bye·law 85(2) and by rotation under Bye·law 86(1): 

(Resolution 2) (i) Dr. HO Chung Tai, Raymond 

(Resolution 3) (ii) Mr. CHAN Wai Lun 

(Resolution 4) (iii) Mr. LI Yi Sheng 

(Resolution 5) (iv) Mr. YUNG Yung Cheng, Frank 

(Resolution 6) 3. To authorise the Directors to fix the Directors' remuneration for the ensuing year. 

(Resolution 7) 4. To re·appoint Messrs. Pricewaterhou seCoopers as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their 

remuneration. 

5. To transact any other ordinary business. 


As Special Business 


To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following as Ordinary Resolutions: 


(Re solu tion 8) 6. "THAT the maximum number of Directors be fi xed at twenty (20) and that the Directors be authorised to appoint 

additional Directors (including alternate Directors) up to such maximum number or such other maximum number as may 

be determined from time to time by shareholders of the Company (the ·Shareholders") in general meeting.· 



(Resolution 9) 7. "THAT: 

(a) 	 subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution, the exercise by the Directors pursuant to Bye-law 3(2) of the Bye-Laws 

of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to purchase 

its own issued ordinary shares of HK$0.75 each in the capital of the Company (the 'Shares") on The Stock 

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the 'SEHK") and the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the 'SGX­

S1') or any other stock exchange on which the Shares are listed at any time, upon such terms and conditions and 

for such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit, and subject to and in accordance 

with all applicable laws and regulations for the repurchase of the Shares, be and is hereby generally and 

unconditionally approved; 

(b) 	 the aggregate amount of the Shares to be purchased pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not 

exceed ten per cent. (10%) of the aggregate amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of 

the passing of this Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and 

(c) 	 for the purposes of this Resolution, "Relevant Period" means the period from the passing of this Resolution until 

whichever is the earlier of: 

(i) 	 the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company; 

(ii) 	 the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law 

to be held; or 

(iii) 	 the time upon which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by ordinary resolution of the 

Shareholders in general meeting: 



---(Resolution 10) 8. 	 "THAT: 

(a) 	 subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution, the exercise by the Directors pursuant to Bye·law 12 of the Bye-Laws 

of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to issue and 

allot additional Shares be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved; 

(b) 	 the aggregate amount of share capital to be issued and allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be 

issued and allotted by the Directors pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise than 

pursuant to (j) a bonus issue; (ii) an issue of Shares upon the exercise of rights of subscription or conversion 

under the terms of any warrant; or (iii) an issue of Shares under any option scheme or similar arrangement for the 

grant or issue to Directors or employees of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any of its 

associated companies of Shares or rights .to acquire Shares, shall not exceed twenty per cent. (20%) of the 

aggregate amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the passing of this Resolution, and 

the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and 

(c) 	 for the purposes of this Resolution, "Relevant Period" means the period from the passing of this Resolution until 

whichever is the earlier of: 

(i) 	 the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company; 

(ii) 	 the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law 

to be held; or 

(iii) 	 the time upon which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by ordinary resolution of the 

Shareholders in general meeting: 

(Resolution II) 9. 	 "THAT conditional upon the passing of Resolutions 9 and 10 of the notice convening this meeting, the general mandate 

granted to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to allot and issue additional Shares pursuant to the 

resolution set out in Resolution 10 of the notice convening this meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition 

thereto of an amount representing the aggregate amount of Shares which has been purchased by the Company pursuant 

to the exercise by the Directors of the powers of the Company to purchase such Shares, provided that such amount 

shall not exceed ten per cent. (! 0%) of the aggregate amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the 

date of the passing of this Resolution." 

By Order of the Board 

KWOK Mei Fan 

Company Secretary 

31 July 2002 
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N~tice of Annual General Meeting 

Notes: 

I. 	 With the exception of The Central Depository (Pte) Limited and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (who may appoint more than two proxiesl, a 


member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoinl no more than two proxies to attend and vole on his behalf and 


such proxy need not be a member of the Company. 


2. 	 To be valid, the instrument appointing the proxy or proxies together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed, or a 


certified copy of such power or authority, must be deposited with the Company's share transfer agenVregistrar as follows: 


(il 	 in the case of those members registered on the principal register: at the office of the Company's Singapore share transfer agent, Barbinder & Co Pte 


Ltd at 8 Cross Street, nll-00 PWC Building, Singapore 048424; and 


(iii 	 in the case of those members registered on the Hong Kong branch register: at the office of the Hong Kong branch share registrar, Abacus Share 


Registrars Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, 


in both cases, not less than 48 hours before the meeting or at any adjournment thereof. 

3. 	 The Ordinary Resolution proposed in item 6 above, if passed, will empower the Director s to appoint additional Director s to the existing Board of Directors 


provided that the total number of Directors does not exceed 20. 


4 . 	 The Ordinary Resolution proposed in item 7 above, if passed, will, subject to any applicable laws and regulation s, empower the Direclors from the date of the 


above meeting until the next Annual General Meeting to exercise the power of the Company to purchase the Shares up to 10 per cent. (10%) of the issued 


share capital of the Company as at the date of the passing of the said Ordinary Resolution for such purposes as they consider would be in the interests of the 


Company. This authority will continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, unless previously revoked or varied at a 


general meeting of the Company. 


5. 	 The Ordinary Resolutions proposed in items 8 and 9 above, if passed, will empower the Directors from the dale of the above meeting until the nex t Annual 


General Meeting to issue and allot Shares up to the aggregate of (i) 20 per cent. (20%) of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the 


passing of the said Ordinary Resolution and (ii) the total number of Shares repurchased by the Company pursuant to the authority granted to the Director s 


under the Ordinary Reso lution proposed in item 7 above for such purposes as they consider would be in the interests of the Company. This authority will 


continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, unless previously revoked or varied at a general meeting of the 


Company. 


6. 	 An explanatory statement containing information with re spec t to malters set o'ut in Ordinary Resolutions 9 to 11 of the notice of the above meeting will be 


sent to all Shareholders of the Company together with the 2002 Annuaf Report of the Company. 
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The Board of Directors of China Motion Telecom International Limited (the "Company") is 
pleased lo  present the interim report and condensed accounts of the Company and its 
subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group") for the six months ended 30 September 2002. The 
Group's consolidated profi t  and loss account, statement of changes in  equity and 
consolidated cash flow statement for the six months ended 30 September 2002, and the 
consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 30 September 2002, all of which are 
unaudited and condensed, along with selected explanatory notes, are set out on pages 1 
to 16 of this report. 

For the six months ended 30 September 2002 

Turnover 

Cost of sales 

Gross profit 

Other revenues 
Distribution expenses 

Administrative expenses 

Revaluation deficit and provision for impairment 
of fixed assets and investment properties 

Operating profit/(loss) 

Finance costs 

Share of profits before taxation 
of associated companies 

Profit/(loss) before taxation 

Taxation 

Profit/(loss) after taxation 

Minority interests 

Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders 

Dividends 

Earnings/(loss) per share 
- Basic 

- Diluted 

Note 

2 

3 

5 

6 

7 

Unaudited 
Six months ended 

30 September 
2002 2001 

HKS'000 HKS'000 
353,658 378,743 

(239,459) (204,611) 

114,199 174,132 
20,165 11,977 

(3,682) (9,188) 
(1 15,412) (138,3101 

- (188,632) 

15,270 (150,021) 

(2,771) (4,746) 

853 208 

13,352 (1 54,5591 
(6,12QI (8,333) 

7,232 (162,892) 
(2,093) 12,559 

5,139 (150,333) 

HK0.98 cents HK(28.61) cents 

N/A 



As at  30 September 2002 and 31 

Goodwill 
Fixed assets 
Investment in associated companies 
Other long-term investments 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Receivables and prepayments 
Marketable securities 
Pledged bank deposits 
Bank and cash balances 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Taxation payables 
Borrowings and overdrafts 

Net current assets 

Total assets less current liabilities 

Financed by: 
Share capital 
Non-distributable capital reserves 
Accumulated losses 

Shareholders’ funds 

Minority interests 

Non-current liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade payable 
Deferred taxation 

Unaudited Audited 
30 September 31 March 

2Q02 2002 
Note HKS’000 HKS‘OOO 

8 5,771 10,298 
9 286,184 264,232 

28,297 2,444 
306,645 346,832 

6,858 8,248 
10 429,593 357,898 

543 1,107 
8,923 6,355 

117,544 111,804 

563,461 485,412 - _ - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

I I  217,005 180,300 
7,843 7,360 

12 67,903 30,543 

292,751 218,203 

270,710 267,209 

897,607 891,015 

_ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

394,109 394,107 
530,951 530,951 
(174,928) (180,067) 

750,130 744,991 

50,981 49,064 
_ _ _ _ - _ _ _ - - _ - - - -  
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ - -  

12 91,982 96,614 
14 4,168 - 

346 346 

96,496 96,960 

897,607 891,015 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ -  



For the  six months ended  30 September 2002 

Unaudited 
NOfl- 

distributable 
Share capital Accumulated 

capital reserves losses Total 
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 

Balance at 1 April 2002 394,107 530,951 (180,067) 744,991 
Profit for the per iod I - 5,139 5,139 

Balance a t  30 September 2002 

Balance at 1 April 2001 394,107 517,059 (35,212) 875,954 
Loss for the per iod - - (150,333) (150,333) 

Balance a t  30 September 2001 



For the six months ended 30 September 2002 

Cash outflow from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Loan to  an associated company 
Receipt from repayment of other 

long-term investments 
Purchase of fixed assets 
Net proceeds from disposal of 

discontinued operation 
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 
Increase in pledged bank deposits 

Net cash outflow from investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Draw-down of revolving loan 
Repayment of bank loans 
Repayment of capital element 

of finance leases 

Net cash inflowAoutflow) from 
financing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the 
beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents 
at the end of period 

Analysis of balances of cash 
and cash equivalents: 
Bank and cash balances 
Bank overdrafts 

Unaudited 
Six months ended 
30 September 

2002 2001 

108,109 84,621 

117,544 84,621 
(91439) - 

108,107 84,621 



9 Basis of preparat ion and account ing policies 

These unaudited consolidated condensed accounts are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong 
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice ("SSAP") 25, "Interim Financial Reporting" issued by 
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. 

These condensed accounts should be read in conjunction with the 2002 annual accounts. 

The accounting policies and methods of computation used i n  the preparation of these condensed 
accounts are consistent with those used in the annual accounts for the year ended 31  March 
2002 except that the Group has adopted the new SSAP 33 'Discontinuing Operations" and SSAP 
34 "Employee Benefits" which became effective on 1 January 2002. The adoption of these new 
SSAPs has no material effect on the Group's results. 

2 Segmenta l  i n fo rma t ion  

The Group is principally engaged in telecommunications networks, mobile related services and 
distribution and retail chain. 

An analysis of the Group's revenue and results for the period by business and geographical 
segments is as follows: 

(aJ Primary reporting format - business segments 

(Unaudited) 

Turnover 

Segmental profit/(lossl 
Net finance costs 
Share of profits before 

taxation of associated 
companies 

Profit before taxation 
Taxation 

Profit after taxation 
hlinority interests 

Six months ended 30 September 2002 
Telecom. Mobile Distribution 

networks services chain operations operations items Group 
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKP000 HKS'000 

munications related and retail Other Discontinued Unallocated 

209,926 49,820 73,183 56 20,673 - 353,658 

10,295 17,246 14,195) 114 28,890 (37,5271 14,823 
12,324 

Profit attributzbie to 
shareholders 5,139 



2 Segmental information (continued) 

la) Primary reporting format - business segments (continued) 

(Unaudited) 

Six months ended 30 September 2001 
Telecom Mobile Distribution 

networks services chain operations operations items Group 
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'OOO HKS'OOO HKS'000 HXS'OOO HKS'000 

munications related and retail Other Discontinued Unallocated 

Turnover 118,866 71,514 98,083 9,409 80,871 - 318,143 

Segmental profit/(loss) 113,6851 49,151 
Net finance costs 
Share of profits before 

taxation of associated 
companies 

toss before taxation 
Taxation 

toss after taxation 
h!inority interests 

Loss attributable to shareholders 

9,731 (43,726) 952 (153,870) (151,447) 
13,3201 

208 

(154,559) 
(8,3331 

1162,892) 
12,559 

(150,3331 

- 

- 

-- 

- 
(bl Secondary reporting format - geographical segments 

(Unaudited) 

Six months ended 3 0  September 
Turnover Segmental profit/(loss) 

2002 2001 2002 2001 
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'OOO HKS'000 

People's Republic of China 
("PRC") 61,226 153,340 29,319 18,014 

Hong Kong 227,670 220,665 22,411 ( 1  6,319) 
Canada and USA 64,762 4,738 620 728 

Unallocated items - - (37,527) 1153,870) 
353,658 378,743 52,350 2,423 

353,658 378,743 14,823 (15 1,447) 



3 Operat ing profi t /( ioss) 

Operating profit/(loss) is stated after crediting and charging the following: 

Six months ended 
30 September 

2002 2001 
HKS'000 HKS'OOO 

Crediting 

Dividend income from listed securities 
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation 

Charging 

Depreciation of fixed assets 
Amortization of goodwill 
Cost of inventories sold 
Provision for doubtful debts 
Provision for slow moving inventories 
Impairment of fixed assets 
- continuing operations 
- discontinued operation 

5 - 
15,902 - 

14,603 19,859 
4,527 4,525 

749 - 
1,108 - 

- 184,016 
- 4,616 

50,239 48,892 

4 Staff costs 

Six months ended 
3 0  September 

2002 2001 
HKS'000 HKS'OOO 

Wages and salaries 52,475 75,920 

Pension costs - defined contribution benefits 3,519 4,689 
Termination benefits 4,928 2,080 

60,922 82,689 



5 Taxation 

ong profits tax has bee 
for the period (2001: 16%). PRC taxation represents income tax 
operating in the PRC at  the applicable rates r 
been provided for a t  the applicable rate on the 

The amount of taxation charged to the consolid 

the Group's subsidiaries 
rseas taxation has 

i 

Current taxation: 

Hong Kong profits tax 
PRC taxation 
Overseas taxation 

Over provision in prior years 

Six months ended 
30 September 

2002 2001 
HKS'OOO HKS'000 

6,120 8,333 

6 Dividends 

The directors do not recommend the payment of an interim dividend for the six months ended 30 
September 2002 (2001: Nil). 

7 Earnings/(loss) per share 

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the Group's prof i t  attributable to 
shareholders of HK$5,139,000 (2001: loss of HKS150,333,000) and the weighted average of 
525,475,573 ordinary shares in issue during the period. 

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for  the period ended 30 September 2002 and 2 0 0 1  has not 
been presented as the conversion of potential ordinary shares to ordinary shares would have anti- 
dilutive effect to the basic earnings/(loss) per share. 
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lncluded in trade and other payables are trade creditors and their ageing analysis IS as follows: 

0 - 30 days 
31 - 60 days 
61 - 90 days 
Over 91 days 

Total 

12 Borrowings and overdrafts 

Noncurrent 
Bank loans - secured 
Obligations under finance leases 

Current 
Bank overdrafts - secured 
Bank loans - secured 
Obligations under finance leases 

Total 

3 0  September 31 March 
2002 2002 

HKS'000 HKS'000 

29,128 24,795 
26,022 8,506 
19,359 6,431 
34,781 20,211 

109.290 59,943 

30 September 3 1  March 
2002 2002 

Note HK$'000 HKS'000 

86,516 96,476 
13 5,466 138 

91,982 96,614 - - - - - - - - _ _ - -  

9,437 - 
54,892 30,335 

13 3,574 208 

67,903 30,543 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ -  
159.885 127. I. 57 



12 Borrowings and overdrafts (continued) 

The movement in the borrowings and overdrafts can be analysed as follows: 

Six months ended 
30 September 

2002 
mwooo  

Opening balance 127,157 
Additions 46,995 
Repayments (14,267) 

Closing balance 159,885 

At 30 September 2002, the Group's borrowings and overdrafts (excluding finance lease liabilities) 
were repayable as follows: 

30 September 31 March 
2002 2002 

HKS'000 HKS'000 

Within one year 
In the second year 
In the third to fifth year 
After the fifth year 

64,329 30,335 
18,238 19,578 
30,145 34,746 
38,133 42,152 

150,845 126,811 



13 Obligations under  f inance leases 

A s  at 30 September 2002, the Group's finance lease liabilities were repayable as follows: 

3 0  September 3 1  March 
2002 2002 

HKS'000 HKS'OOO 

Within one year 3,614 257 
In the second year 3,401 172 
In the third to  fifth year 2,518 - 

9,533 429 
Future finance charges on finance leases (4931 (83) 

Present value of finance lease liabilities 

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: 

3 0  September 3 1  March 
2 0 0 2  2002 

HKS'000 HKS'OOO 

Within one year (included in current liabilities) 3,574 208 

In the second year 3,256 138  
In the third t o  fifth year 2,210 - 

- - - - - - - - - - - -  

14 Non-current  t rade  payable 

The amount is non-interest bearing, unsecured and not repayable within twelve months from the 
balance sheet date. 



15 Discontinued operation 

On 28 May 2002, a sale and purchase agreement (the "Agreement") was entered into between 
China Motion Telecom (HK) Limited, a whollyowned subsidiary of the Group, and Telecom Digital 
Data Limited (the 'Purchaser"). Under which, the Group disposed of its business of operating 
paging networks and providing paging services in Hong Kong and, where the context per 
included the Business Assets (the "Business") to the Purchaser. 

Under the term of the Agreement, the Business included the licences, the equipment and other 
benefits of the subscriber contracts and transmission sites contracts. 

The consideration for the disposal of the Business would be equal to the total gross revenues 
(and pro rata where necessary) of the Business that are actually received by the Purchaser from 
the subscribers for  the paging services provided to the subscribers for  the months of June, 
August and October 2002. 

This operation was sold and discontinued with effect from 1 June 2002. The sales, results, cash 
flows and net assets of the paging operation were as follows: 

Turnover 
Other revenues 
Operating costs 
Impairment of fixed assets 

Operating profit 
Net finance income 

Six months ended 
30 September 

2002 2001 
HKS'OOQ HKS'000 

20,673 76,399 
77 1,415 

(64,788) (7,752) - (4,616) 

12,988 8,410 
4 92 

Profit before taxation 
Taxation 

Profit after taxation 

Cash inflow in respect of: 

Operating activities 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 

12,992 8,502 
1,779 120) 

14,771 8,482 

Total cash inflow 



15 Discontinued operation (continued) 

Fixed assets 
Current assets 

Total assets 1,943 22,912 
Total liabilities - (1 12,428) 

Net assetsAliabilities) 1,943 (89,5161 

The gain on disposal to be recognised in the year ending 3 1  March 2003 is 

Net assets sold 
Severance payment 

Proceeds from sale 

Gain on disposal of discontinued operation 
Taxation thereon 

After-tax gain on disposal of discontinued operation 

The net cash inflow on sale is determined as follows: 

Proceeds from sale 
Less: accounts receivable 

advance subscription income received 
severance payment 

Net cash inflow on sale 

HKS'OOO 

1,943 
2,492 

4,435 
[20,337) 

(15,902) - 
(15,902 J 

HKS'O00 

20,337 
(9,296) 
(7,3991 
(2,492) 

1,150 



16 Cont ingent l iabi l i t ies 

The Group had contingent ha rovided for in the accounts as follows: 

30 September 3 1  March 
2002 2002 

HK$ '0 00 HKS'000 

Guarantees given to third 
non-performance of contractual i 

obligations by subsidiaries 35 874 35 4 7 4  

17 Commi tments  

fal Operating leases commitments 

At  3 0  September 2002, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- 
cancellable operating leases as follows: 

30 September 3 1  March 
2002 2002 

HKS'000 HKS'000 

in respect of land and buildings, including transmission sites: 

Within one year 
In the second to fifth year 
After the fifth year 

14,990 23,014 
8,522 17,237 - 1,635 

23,512 41,886 

In respect of leased lines: 

Within one year 34,125 27,110 
In the second to  fifth year 1,146 10,419 

35,271 37,529 

(b)  Capital commitments for purchase of fixed assets 

30 September 31  March 
2002 2002 

HK$'000 HKS'000 

Contracted but not provided for 3,540 17,354 
Authorised but not contracted for - 36,955 

3,540 54,309 



(a1 Significant transactions d g the period between the Group and related parties and also 
including minority shareholders of subsidiaries during the period, which were carried out in 
the normal course of business and on terms arranged by or between the parties concerned 
are as follows: 

Six months ended 
30 September 

2002 2001 
HKS'OOO HKS'000 

Income/(expense) 

Rental payable to a related party - (316) 

Significant transactions with associated company 
Goodfine Holdings Limited 

Network service fee - (632) 

Significant transactions with minority 
shareholders of subsidiaries 
China Motion Telecom Holdings Limited ("CMTH") 

Net sales of pagers and telecommunications equipment 
Maintenance service income 
Leasing income 
Airtime income 
Recharge of paging service expenses, 

operators' cost and dataline rental 
Dataline expenses 

Sales of telecommunications equipment 

Provision of technical consultancy and 
maintenance services 

VolP service fee income 

Shenzhen China Motion Telecom United Company Limited 

China Motion Netcom Services Co. Ltd. 

- 619  
- 10,004 
- 9,066 
- 1,320 

- (5,177) 
- (561) 

2,526 2,976 

46,515 71,514 
1,142 - 

(b) Included in receivables and prepayments is an amount due from CMTH and its subsidiaries of 
HK$294,985,000. 



The following chart shows the principal subsidiaries and associated companies of the 
Group and their principal activities: 
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During the period under review, the global economy still suffered from high volatility and 
poor sentiment. Under such global influences, the outlook o f  telecom industry, one of the 
most hard hit sectors, remains pessimistic. The prevailing economic conditions in Hong 
Kong during the same period was no better, as indicated by poor consumer and investment 
confidence and continued deflation. In China, however, the economy has proved an 
exception with positive economic growth in exports and foreign investments, and China is 
emerging as a new economic power - the "manufacturing powerhouse" of the world. 
China's demand for telecom services, domestically and internationally, has increased 
tremendously in light of these economic changes. 

For the six months ended 3 0  September 2002, despite these adversities and a slight 
decrease in turnover of 6.6% to  HKS353.7 million when compared to  the same period 
last year, the Group stayed on course with stable development of i ts core businesses. 
The Group's financial results turned around from a loss attributable to  shareholders of 
HKS150.3 million to a net profit of HKS5.1 million. 

The encouragrng improvement was made possible by various business strategies which 
included the expansion of IDD business especially the in-bound China traffic, the introduction 
of further value-added services, and consolidation of capital and staff resources. 
Additionally, the discontinuance of non-profitable businesses and the divestment of paging 
operations, also helped realign the Group's operations and resources to focus on developing 
its core businesses, namely, telecommunications networks, mobile related services, and 
distribution and retail chain. 

Telecommunications Networks 

This is predominantly wholesale IDD services which has shown outstanding growth. During 
the period under review, the segmental turnover increased to  HKS209.9 million, 
representing an increase of 76.6% when compared to  the same period last year. 

A 91.0% rise in the turnover of IDD services t o  HKS204.4 million was a result o f  voice 
traffic volume reaching an average of 106 million minutes per month. The profit contribution 
also increased from HKS28.7 million to HKS37.4 million. The gross margin of IDD services 
continued to trend downwards due to market conditions. However, growing traffic attracted 
to the Group's network as i ts geographical expansion into new locations, and an expected 
increase in China-related traffic worldwide will compensate for this pressure on our gross 
margin. In the near future, the newly activated regions such as Singapore, Taiwan and 
Vietnam will become revenue contributors. IDD services will be our mainstay of revenue 
and profit contribution in the foreseeable future. 



Mobile Related Services 

For the period under review, revenue from Mobile Virtual Network Operator ('MVNO") 
business was reflected for the first time sin 
overall mobile related service results, which also the mobile related services in 
Guangdong, reported a total revenue of HKS49.8 million, representing a 30.3% decrease 
when compared with last year. The decrease was caused by ARPU reduction in Guangdong, 
which was in line with the market trend. New opportunities in mobile businesses are 
emerging as the Group continues to  closely work with its strategic partners in China 
especially in the southern provinces. 

Within the period under review, the MVNO business in Hong Kong was launched for  a 
short duration, hence only a small revenue contribution was recorded. The growth in 
subscriber base is in line with the Group's business he Group expects the subscriber 
base to  increase by leveraging on its existing c rder strength and by  providing 
innovative value-added services. 

Distribution and Retail Chain 

Revenue from distribution and retail chain operations was HKS73.2 million, representing a 
decrease of 25.4%. The decrease in revenue was attributable to poor local retail market 
caused b y  a saturated penetration rate of the mobile market and continued economic 
recession. The Group is currently introducing more varieties of telecom products and 
value-added services, while consolidating the shops in Hong Kong to improve operating 
performance. Currently, there are a total of 27 CM Concept stores in Hong Kong. 

While the current consumer and retail market sentiment is  still poor, the Group anticipates 
better performance ahead through the introduction of more own brand products and 
services in the shops and better resource management. 

Discontinued Operations 

In May 2002, the Group disposed of its paging operations and related assets, as it is 
anticipated that the paging market and subscriber base will continue to shrink and be 
cannibalized by the mobile phone and related services. Before disposal, paging operations 
recorded a revenue of HKS20.7 million. 

The consideration for the disposal was based on the revenue received by the purchaser 
for the months of June, August and October. The gain arising therefrom has been included 
under profit before taxation. With the cessation of paging operations, the Group's resources 
become more focused on the other core businesses which are anticipated to provide 
revenue growth and increasing profit contributions. 



Despite China‘s formal accession to  the World Trade Organization (“WTO”) in December 
2001, its telecom market will take stages to open, The Group views China’s entry into 
WTO with great enthusiasm and has been seeking investment and co-operation o 
i n  China such as the projects in VolP, mobile and retail businesses. These pro 
they become implemented, will provide synergy with the Group’s existing businesses as 
China‘s market opens up. 

With fair amount of ground work in place, I 
In the second half of the financial year, b 
anticipate the operations will be profitable. 

evenue i s  expected t o  increase appreciably. 
g unforeseen circumstances, the directors 

The Group has always maintained a stable financial position. The gearing ratio remained 
at a healthy level o f  21% as at 30 September 2002 as compared with 17% as at 31 
March 2002. 

As at 30 September 2002, the Group had cash balance of HKS126.5 million and unutilized 
es of HKS24.2 million. The Group is confident in meeting its future capital 

expenditure and business development requirements. 

The Group has exposure t o  the fluctuations in Renminbi and United States dollars as 
certain expenses payable and trade receivables from customers are settled in these 
currencies respectively. 



As at 30 September 2002, the Group ha mber of 472 full-time staff. Total staff 
cost incurred for the period amounted to  HKS60.9 million. The Group's remunerafion 
policy has been in line with the prevailing m 
based on performance and experience. 

In addition to salaries, the Group offers a staff benefits package t o  i t s  employees, 
including training allowance, provident fund and medical insurance. The Group also grants 
share options to  certain directors of the Company and employees of the Group. 

et practice and remunerated i ts e 

i 

Apart from above, other areas which are required to be disclosed under the requirements 
of paragraph 40 of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The 
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Listing Rules") either have no material changes 
from the information disclosed in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 
March 2002 or are considered not significant to the Group's operations, and hence no 
additional disclosure has been made in this report. 

The Company has not redeemed any of i ts shares during the period. Neither the Company 
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's shares during the 
period. 



At 30 September 2002, the interests of the directors and chief executive in the shares of 
the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities 
(Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance ("SDI Ordtnan in the register required 
t o  be kept under Section 29 of the SDI Ordinanc 

Ordinary Shares 

Number of ordinary shares held 

Personal Family Corporate Other 
interests Interests Interests Interests 

Hau Tung Ying - - 270,247,500 - 

Shui Ming Hua 250,000 - - - 

Hu Tiejun 292,000 - - - 

(Note) 

Chan Wai Lun 267,000 - - - 

Note: The 270,247,500 shares are legally and beneficially owned by Goldtop Holdings Limited 
("Goldtop"). Mr. Hau Tung Ying and his wife, Madam Ting i a t  Shuk, are both directors of 
Goldtop in which they hold 30,000 and 20,000 shares respectively, representing 60% 
and 40% of the entire issued share capital of Goldtop. 

(b) Share Options 

(i) In accordance with a share option scheme known as "China Motion Employees' 
Share Option Scheme" (the "Share Option Scheme") adopted on 18 March 1998,  
the directors of the Company may at their discretion invite eligible employees of 
the Group, including executive directors of the Company, t o  take up options to 
subscribe for shares in the Company under the terms and conditions stipulated 
therein. The Share Option Scheme was subsequently terminated by the Company in 
a special general meeting held on 6 September 2002 but the share options granted 
and not yet exercised thereunder would however remain effective and are bound by 
the terms therein. 



Share Qptions (continued] 

(iil On 6 Sep tember  2002, the  C o m p a n y  a d o p t e d  a n e w  hare  o p t i o n  s c h e m e  ( the  
"New Share Option Scheme"), pursuant t o  which the d i rec to rs  m a y  at  their  d isc re t ion  
g r a n t  share opt ions to any employee,  d i rec to r  or chief  execut ive ,  suppl ier ,  sa les  
a g e n t ,  c u s t o m e r ,  j o in t  ven ture  p a r t n e r ,  a c c o u n t a n t ,  l e g a l  a d v i s e r ,  b u s i n e s s  
deve lopmen t  and technological  consul tant ,  substant ia l  shareholders of t h e  Company 
or of i t s  subsidiar ies under  the t e r m s  and condi t ions s t ipu la ted  therein.  No share 
o p t i o n s  have ever been  g r a n t e d  by t h e  C o m p a n y  u n d e r  t h e  N e w  Share  O p t i o n  
S c h e m e  since adoption. 

In acco rdance  w i th  t h e  Share Opt ion S c h e m e  men t ioned  in  (i) above ,  n o  sha re  o p t i o n s  
were  g r a n t e d ,  exerc ised or cance l led  dur ing  t h e  per iod .  Deta i l s  of t h e  sha re  o p t i o n s  
gran ted  t o  t h e  d i rec to rs  or el ig ib le employees under  the  Share Opt ion  S c h e m e  remain ing  
outstanding a s  a t  30 September 2002 were as fol lows: 

No. of No. of  No. of 
outstanding options outstanding 

options lapsed options ai 
Exercise Exercise Vesting at 1 April during 30 September 

Category Date of grant price period period 2002 the period 2002 
HKS 

DireClOr6: 

Hau Tung Ying 20 March 2001 0.75 20/03/02 - 19/03/11 20/03/02 - 20/03/04 2,000,000 2,000,000 
Shui hling Hua 25 February 2000 

17 Oclober 2000 
20 March 2001 

3.19 
1,22 
0.75 

25/02/01 - 11/03/08 N/A 
17/10/01 - 17/03/08 N/A 
20/03/02 - 19/03/11 20/03/02 - 20/03/04 

378,499 
432,570 

2,000,000 

378,499 
432,510 

2,000,000 
Chan Wai tun 25 February 2000 

11 October 2000 
20 March 2001 

Yang Jun 29 June 1998 
25 February 2000 
17 October 2000 
20 March 2001 

3.19 
1.22 
0.15 

25/02/01 - 17/03/08 N/A 
17/10/01 - 11/03/08 N/A 
20/03/02 - 19/03/11 20/03/02 - 20/03/04 

378,499 

2,000,000 
432,570 

251,483 
252,333 
288,380 

2,000,000 
252,333 
288,380 

2,000,000 

378,499 
432,510 

2,000,000 
257,183 
252,333 
288,380 

2,000,000 

252,333 
288,380 

2,000,000 

0.151 
3.19 
1.22 
0.15 

29/06/99 - 17/03/08 N/A 
25/02/01 - 17/03/08 N/A 
i7/io/oi - 17/03/08 N/A 
20/03/02 - 19/03/11 20/03/02 - 20/03/04 

Hu Tielun 19 August 1999 
11 October 2000 

20 March 2001 

2.00 
1.22 
0.75 

I9/08/00 - 17/03/08 N/A 
17/10/01- 17/03/08 N/A 
20/03/02 - 19/03/11 20/03/02 - 20/03/04 

Continuous Contract 
Employees of 
the Group: 29 June 1998 

19 August 1999 
25 February 2000 
17 October 2000 

20 March 2001 
28 January 2002 

0.751 
2.00 
3.19 
1.22 
0.75 
0.15 

29/06/99 - 17/03/08 N/A 
19/08/00 - 17/03/08 N/A 
25/02/01 - 17/03/08 N/A 
17/10/01 - 17/03/08 N/A 
20/03/02 - 19/03/11 
28/01/03 - 27/01/12 

20/03/02 - 20/03/04 
28/01/03 - 28/01/05 

226,583 
1,220,465 (97,844) 

2,085,605 172,096) 
16,200,000 11,050,000) 
1,850,000 1350,000) 

82,394 

226,583 
1,220,465 (97,844) 

2,085,605 172,096) 
16,200,000 11,050,000) 
1,850,000 1350,000) 

82,394 

226,583 
1,122,621 

82,394 
2,013,509 

15,150,000 
1,500,000 



Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period was the Company or i ts holding 
company a party to  any arrangement t o  enable the directors of the Company to acquire 
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any 
other body corporate. 

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 16(1) of the SDI 
Ordinance shows that, as at 30 September 2002, the Company had been notified of the 
following substantial shareholders' interests, being 10% or more of the issued share 
capital of the Company. 

Number of % of issued 
Name shares held share capital 

Goldtop Holdings Limited (Note I j  270,247,500 51.43 
Hau Tung Ying (Note 2) 270,247,500 51.43 
Ting Yat Shuk (Note 3) 270,247,500 51.43 

Notes: (1) Goldtop Holdings Limited ("Goldtop") is owned as to 60% by Mr. Hau Tung Ying and 40% 
by Madam Ting Yat Shuk. 

(2) Mr. Hau Tung Ying is deemed t o  be interested in the 270,247,500 shares held by 
Goldtop due to his 60% direct interest in Goldtop. 

(3) Madam Ting Yat Shuk is deemed t o  be interested in the 270,247,500 shares held by 
Goldtop due to her 40% direct interest in Goldtop. 

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2002, no other person or corporation was 
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant t o  Section 16(1) of the SDI 
Ordinance as having an interest of 10% or more of the issued share capital of the 
Company. 

None of the directors of the Company IS aware of any information that would reasonably 
indicate that the Company is  not, or was not for any part of the six months ended 30  
September 2002, in compliance with the Code of Best Practice as se t  out in Appendix 1 4  
of the Listing Rules. 



The Group has established an Audit Committee since 1996.  The Audit Committee at  the 
date of this repor t  comprises two independent non-executive directors and one non- 
executive director. 

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting priwiples and practices 
adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters 
including a review of the unaudited consolidated condensed accounts for the six months 
ended 30 September 2002. 

In accordance with the requirement under paragraph 3.2.1 of Practice Note 1 9  of the 
Listing Rules, the directors of the Company repor t  the details of advances t o  China 
Motion Telecom Holdings Limited (“CMTH”) and its subsidiaries as at 30 September 2002 
as follows: 

Total 
HKS’OQQ 

CMTH 32,139 
China Motion Netcom Services Co. Ltd. 191,599 
Shenzhen China Motion Telecom United Company Limited 71,247 

294,985 

The advances were trade receivables arising from the Group’s normal and ordinary course 
of business and were unsecured, interest-free with credit term of 30 - 9 0  days. 

Trade receivables from 

P 

By Order of the Board 
Hau Tung Ying 

Chairman 

Hong Kong, 3 December 2002 

0 25 
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The Umrd of Directors of Chiaia Motion Telccom liiteriiatiortal Liriiiled [the "Coiiiimiiy"] is 
pleased to prcsenl the iiitcrirn report and condensed accousits of  tlie Cornpariy and its 
subsidiaries !collectiuciy, the "Groirp") lor the six moiifhs ended 30 Scptcniber 2002. Ilie 
Group3 tonsollidated profi l  and loss account. statcnierlt of changes in equity arrd 
coiisalidaled cash 4lan slaternenh for tlie six months elided 30 Scpterriber 2002, an& tlie 
consolidated balance sheet of the Grotrp as at 30 Seatember 2002, all DI which are 
iriiauditctl asad condensed. along r i t h  selected explanatory notes, arc set olrt oii paRcs 1 
Io 16 of this Icliort. 

Prclfi V!I ossl zt!l liulab le f 3 shareholders 

No?e 

2 

3 

5 

I;  

7 

! 

! 
i 

I 
I 
i 
I 

! 

j 
! 
I 
! 
i ; 
i 
! 

! 

As at 30 Sepletrrber 2002 and 31 hhrcli 2002 

Audited u mtau dllte d 

Goodwill 
Firer1 assets 
Ii ivcsli i iei it iii associated coiiiImiics 
0 ther long-term investnients 

Current assets 
Iiivecilorics 
Receivables aiid prepayments 
Marketable securities 
Pledged hank deposits 
Bank and cash balances 

30 September 
20 02 

NOtF HKS'000 

8 5.77 1 
9 286,984 

28.297 
306.645 

6,858 
I @  429 5 93 

5 43 
8,923 

117,544 

31 ?ilarcii 
2002 

HKsOuo 
10.293 

264.232 
2.444 

346,832 

8.248 
357,898 

1,107 
6,355 

1 1 1.804 

Currc nt liabilities 
Ttade and ollier liayables 
laxation payabtes 
Dorromiiigs arid overdrafts 

Net currei i i  assets 

Total assets less curler>! Iiabililies 

rinariserl by: 
Share capital 
No I\-distti bu t ab8c call ita I I@ serv cs 
f v m " m d  IDsscs 

S I imhol d ers' firn ds 

Mi iiarity iiiterest s 

Non.ctirrcn t ~iahilil ies 
Dorro:.rings 
Frafic pa;able 
Defei red laxatiorb 

I f  217.005 
7.843 

12 87,903 

48'5.412 
I---- 

180.300 
7.360 

30,543 

292,Tti 1 218,203 

270,710 267.209 

- -  

~ ----- 

897,607 a9 1,015 

344 .I I17 394,107 
530,951 530,951 

[ 174,9 a a] I! 80,0671 

12 91.982 96,614 
I 4 4,168 

34 6 316 

96,196 96,95@ 

$99,607 891,015 

- - - .. . . . ._ . . . 

- - - - - - -  - r--- 
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CM Tel (USA) LLC 
Balance Sheet as at the end of Mar 2003 
LUnaudited) 

- HKD 
I 

Net current &wts 

T o ~ Q ~  Ne1 Assels 

(18,821,836.39) (2,413,055.95) 

3.201.531.46 410,552.75 

1 I 1 1  . ,  
/Capital employed 
I I 1  I 

Re s e rv e s 
Retdned pmtils 
R o A t  lor the yew 
Total capital and reserves 

I 1 1  

I 1  78,000.00 1 10.000 00 
I ̂^ 

/share capital 
I V.UU 

3,109,259 53 398,623.02 
14,271.93 1,829.73 

3.201.531.46 410,452.75 

I 1  I 
Ihlinority interests I 

I I 1  . I  

jTorol Cnpilnl Etnployed 410,452.75 
I 1 1  I 

1 1  3,201,531.46 

c 1 uno 1 0 



CM Tel (USA) LLC 
Profit & Loss ACCQUII~ ~ Q T  Mar 2003 
&h-K3udited) 

Sales 

Sales Discount 

B Cost 

GP 

Service Income 

c Direct Cost 

GP 

Total GP 

Dividend lncome 

D Other Income 

E Selling Expenses 

F Financial Expenses 

G General 8r Administrative Expenses 

Other Expenses 

- Dividerid 

- T u  
Tax 
Profit Tax 

- 

Share of profits less losses of 
associated companies 

Net Profit / (Loss) after T u  

- HKD US$ 
143,639,128.03 18,415,272.82 

187,423,885.02 24,028,703.21 

(43,784,756.99) (5,613,430.38) 

(125,046,092.42) (16,031,550.31) 

18593,035.6 1 233,722.5 1 

18,593,035.61 2,383,722.5 1 

388,273.32 49,778.63 

(1,268,54224) (162,672.05) 

(1737.13)  (2.208.61) 

(15,599,178.83) (1,999,894.72) 

(2.08 1.785.80) [3G6.596.00) 

(2,081,758.50) (266.896.00) 

14,271 93 1.829.73 



CM Tel USA LLC 
BALANCE SHEET (unaudited) 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2002 

NON-CIJRRENT ASSETS 
Fixed assets 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and bank 
Due from group companies 
Accounts receivable 
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables 

CU"T LUBILITHES 
Due to group companies 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses and other payables 

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 

CAPITAL AND IiUESEXVES 
Issued capital 
Retained profit 
Profit for the year 

HK$ US$ 
Dr/(Cr) Dr/(Cr) 

14,541,129 1,864,247 

14,541,129 1,864,247 

2,694,145 345,480 
19,365,275 2,482,728 
2,579,265 330,675 
1,130,972 144,996 

25,170,256 3,303,879 

1,299,601 10,136,886 
23,985,008 3,075,001 

3,002,232 384,902 

37,124,125 4,759,503 

(1 1,353,869) (1,455,624) 

3.187.260 408.623 

78,000 10,000 
886,448 113,647 

2,222,812 284,976 

3,187,260 408,623 



COST OF SALES 

GROSS PROFIT 

0 ther income 

General and administrative expenses 
Financial expenses 
Selling expenses 
TOTAL EWENSES 

WORE TAXATION 

TAXATION 

HK$ US$ 
Dr/(Cr) Dr/(Cr) 

60,478,724 7,753,683 

(49,121,746) (6,297,660) 

11,356,978 1,456,023 

127,255 16,315 

I ,67 3,47 5 983,779 
21,682 2,780 

1,105,667 141,752 
8,800,823 1,128,311 

2,683,409 344,021 

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 
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FLORIDA DEPBRTMENT OF STATE 
Glenda E. Hood 
Secretary of State 

May 20,2003 

DARLENE WARD 
csc 
, 

Qualification documents for CM TEL (USA) LLC were filed on May 20, 2003, and 
assigned document number M03000001597. Piease refer to this number whenever 
corresponding with this office. 

Your limited liability company is now qualified and authorized to transact business in 
Florida as of the file date. In accordance with section 608.406(2), F.S., the name of this 
limited liability company is filed with the Department of State for public notice only and is 
granted without regard to any other name recorded with the Division of Corporations. 

The certification you requested is enclosed, 

A limited liability company annual reporthniform business report will be due this office 
between January 1 and May I of the year following the calendar year of the file date. A 
Federal Employer Identification (FEI) number will be required before this report can be 
filed. If you do not already have an FEI number, please apply NOW with the Internal 

Please be aware if the limited liability company address changes, it is the responsibility 
of the corporation to mtify this office. 

Re\jenue h:: - I  calling ! -500-829=3676 2nd reC!!&igg I -. form SS-4, 

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please telephone (850) 245- 
6051 ~ the Registration and Qualification Section. 

Tammi C!ine 
Bocu me nt Special i st 
Division of Corporations 

Account number: 072100000032 

Letter Number: 003A00031399 

h o u n t  charged: 130.00 

Division of Corporations - F.O. BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314 



I certify from the records of this office that CM TEL (USA) LLC on May 20, 2003, 
is a Delaware limited liability company authorized to transact business in the 
State of Florida, qualified on May 20, 2003. 

The document number of this limited liability company is M03000001597. 

I further certify that said limited liability company has paid all fees due this office 
through December 31, 2003, and its status is active. 

I further certify that said limited liability company has not filed a Certificate of 
Withdrawal. 

CR2E022 (2-03) 

Given under my hand and the 
Great Seal of the State of Florida 

at Tallahassee, the Capitol, this the 
Twentieth day of May, 2003 



1. CM Tel (USA) LLc 
(Name of foreign limited liability company) 

2. DELAWARE 3. 9 4 - 3 3 3 7 0 4 7  
(Jurisdiction under the law of which foreign limited liability (FEI number, if applicabie) 

conipany is organized) ,--- ~ 

4. July 13, 1 9 9 9  
(Date of Organization) 

5 .  perpetual 
(Duration: Year limited liability company will cease to 

exist or "perpetual") 
- 

c,1 

5 .  perpetual 
(Duration: Year limited liability company will cease to 

exist or "perpetual") 
- 

c,1 
LJ 6. March 1, 2 0 0 3  
..a . - @ate first transacted business in Florida. (See sections 608.501, 608.502, and 817.155, F.S.) 2:; 

i.. I .. r'3 3 7, 7 0 0  wilshire Blvd., 7th Floor .. . 
r -  - 
2 - 7 . 7  I b ,  .. ;57 
- .  5 1 - 7  - 1 ;  A 

- .. 1 7-4 
c.7 ! : ', -,a 

- 9 4  

--c - .. 
'I.. *.. - 

, P.- 

-1,s a -  

LOS mgeles, CA 9 0 0 1 7  - I I .  (Street address of principal office) ci:,; -,- . .. 
.->I . 

- 8 - 7  8. If limited liability company is a manager-managed company, check here 2.- 

9. The name and usual business addresses of the managing members or managers are as follows: 

Hau T u n q  Yins, House 10 Upper Duplex, The Royal C l i f f ,  5 0  Repulse Bay Road, Honq Konq 

~u Tiejun, Flat 9, 15th Floor, Blook 24, Baguio Villa, 5 5 5  Victoria Road, Hong Kong 

10. Amhedis an o n p a l  cm3c-a.k of e*%, no more b 9 0  days 014 duly d d c a t e d b y  the official having  of& in 
themctionutlder the law of which it is orgitxxd (Aphotwpy is not acceptble. Tfthe d c a t e  is in a foreiplzmgmge, a 
mlation ofdie &cak under oath of the translator must be sulrmitted) 

11. Nature of business or purposes to be conducted or promoted in Florida: Telecommunications 

services, and other business activities 

'kh 1 n.- 
Signature of a membdr o'r &&&&qed r&resentative of a member. 
(Inaccordance with section 606.40&(3(: F.S., the e\y'E$n of this document constitutes 
an affirmation under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated herein are true.) 

Hu Tiejun, Manaqer 
Typed or printed name of signee 



pURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 608.415 or 608.507, FLORIDA STATUTES, 
THE UNDERSIGNED LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY SUBMITS THE FOLLOWING 
STATEMENT TO DESIGNATE A REGISTERED OFFICE AND REGISTERED AGENT IN THE 
STATE OF FLORIDA. 

1. The name of the Limited Liability Company is: 

2. The name and the Florida street address of the registered agent and office are: 

Corporation Service Company 

(Name) 

1201 Hays Street 
Florida street address (P.O. Box NOT ACCEPTABLE) 

Tallahassee FL 3 2 3 0 1  

(CitylStatelZip) 

Having been named as segistered agent and to accept service ofprocess for. the above stated limited 
liabilify company at the place designated in this certiJicate, I hereby accept the appointment as 
vegistered ageiit and agree to act in this capacity. Ifia-ther- agree to comply with the provisions of all 
statutes relating to the proper. and complete performance of my duties, and I ain familiar with and 
uccept the obligatiorzs of niy positioiz as registered agent as provided for. in Chapter. 608, F S .  

I", 


